
County Offices
Newland

Lincoln
LN1 1YL

23 September 2016

Planning and Regulation Committee

A meeting of the Planning and Regulation Committee will be held on Monday, 3 
October 2016 at 1.30 pm in Mere's Leisure Centre, Trent Road, Grantham, Lincs 
NG31 7XQ for the transaction of business set out on the attached Agenda. 

Yours sincerely

Tony McArdle
Chief Executive

Membership of the Planning and Regulation Committee 
(15 Members of the Council)

Councillors I G Fleetwood (Chairman), D McNally (Vice-Chairman), J W Beaver, 
D Brailsford, G J Ellis, D C Hoyes MBE, D M Hunter-Clarke, M S Jones, 
Ms T Keywood-Wainwright, N H Pepper, Mrs H N J Powell, Mrs J M Renshaw, 
C L Strange, T M Trollope-Bellew and W S Webb

Public Document Pack





PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE AGENDA
MONDAY, 3 OCTOBER 2016

Item Title Pages

1. Apologies/replacement members 

2. Declarations of Members' Interests 

3. Minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning and 
Regulation Committee held on 25 July 2016 

5 - 12

4. Traffic Item 

4.1  Traffic Regulation Orders - Progress Review 13 - 20

5. County Matter Applications 

5.1  For the extraction of limestone and importation of 
sustainable inert fill to achieve a beneficial 
restoration of the site on land located off Gorse Lane, 
Denton - Mick George Limited - S26/1611/15 

21 - 86

6. County Council Applications 

6.1  To construct a dome shaped circular building for the 
storage of road salt, associated surface water 
drainage improvements and water storage at the 
Highways Depot, Hemingby Lane, Horncastle  - 
(E)S86/1655/16 

87 - 98

7. Other Reports 

7.1  In respect of non-compliance with a statutory 
planning notice issued under the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 in respect of a waste transfer 
station at Summergangs Lane, Gainsborough 

99 - 102



Democratic Services Officer Contact Details 

Name: Steve Blagg

Direct Dial 01522 553788

E Mail Address steve.blagg@lincolnshire.gov.uk

Please note:  for more information about any of the following please contact 
the Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting

 Business of the meeting
 Any special arrangements
 Copies of reports

Contact details set out above.

All papers for council meetings are available on: 
www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/committeerecords

http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/committeerecords


PLANNING AND REGULATION 
COMMITTEE

25 JULY 2016

PRESENT:  COUNCILLOR I G FLEETWOOD (CHAIRMAN)

Councillors D McNally (Vice-Chairman), J W Beaver, D Brailsford, G J Ellis, 
D C Hoyes MBE, M S Jones, Ms T Keywood-Wainwright, N H Pepper, 
Mrs J M Renshaw, C L Strange, T M Trollope-Bellew, W S Webb and A M Austin

Councillors  B Young and C J Davie attended the meeting as observers and spoke 
on minute No's 37 and 38.

Officers in attendance:-

Steve Blagg (Democratic Services Officer), Graeme Butler (Project and Technical 
Support Manager), Neil McBride (Planning Manager), Satish Shah (Network Manager 
South), Marc Willis (Applications Team Leader) and Mandy Wood (Solicitor)

30    APOLOGIES/REPLACEMENT MEMBERS

An apology for absence was received from Councillor D Hunter-Clarke.

The Chief Executive reported that under the Local Government (Committee and 
Political Groups) Regulations 1990, he had appointed Councillor A M Austin to the 
Committee, place of Councillor Mrs H N J Powell, for this meeting only.

31    DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS

None declared at this point of the meeting.

32    MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND 
REGULATION COMMITTEE HELD ON 4 JULY 2016

RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting of the Planning and Regulation Committee held on 4 
July 2016, be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

33    TRAFFIC ITEMS

34    B1397 LONDON ROAD, BOSTON – PROPOSED TOUCAN CROSSING

The Committee received a report in connection with objections and also a petition 
received objecting to the proposal to introduce a Toucan Crossing facility on the 
B1397 London Road, Boston. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.



PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE
25 JULY 2016

The report detailed the consultations, objections received and the comments of 
officers on the objections received.

Comments made by the Committee and responses by officers, where appropriate, 
included:-

1. The area had seen a lot of housing development in recent years, a new 
preparatory school had been built and the B1397 London Road was heavily 
trafficked. 
2. The safety of residents, children and cyclists was important.
3. What was the difference between the various pedestrian crossings? Officers 
explained the different types of pedestrian crossings. In this particular case a Toucan 
Crossing was a dual crossing for both pedestrians and cyclists.
4. Was the Toucan Crossing's sensors able to prevent a nuisance to traffic when not 
in use? Officers stated that they were unable to answer this question as they had not 
seen the detailed design for the lights at this stage.
5. Did the house numbers on the petition correlate to the location of the Toucan 
Crossing? Officers stated that the house numbers did correlate to the location of the 
crossing.

On a motion by Councillor I G Fleetwood, seconded by Councillor T M Trollope-
Bellew, it was – 

RESOLVED (12 votes for, 0 votes against and 0 abstentions)

That the objections be overruled and the Toucan Crossing be introduced.

(Post meeting note:-
With regard to question No. 4 asked by Members in connection with the sensors on 
the Toucan Crossing to ensure the crossing does not to turn red to traffic if someone 
presses the button and then walks away, it has been confirmed by the designer that 
what is known as a 'kerbside detector' will be fitted and so this situation should not 
occur)

35    SKEGNESS, A52 ROMAN BANK – PROPOSED BUS LANE EXTENSION

The Committee received a report in connection with comments and an objection 
received during the consultation and public advertising of the proposal to extend the 
existing Bus Lanes that currently run along the A52 Roman Bank at Skegness.

The report detailed the objection received and the comments of the officers on the 
objection received. Officers stated that the local Member, Councillor R Hunter-Clarke, 
who was also a member of the Committee, had requested that the Committee should 
be informed that he was in favour of the proposals in the report.

Officers, in response to a question from the Committee, stated that it was proposed 
to carry out the works during the Autumn, Winter and Spring, when visitors reduced 
but it was difficult to predict the duration of the works due to the fact that there would 
be a need to carry out a lot of drainage work associated with the scheme.

Page 6



PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE
25 JULY 2016

On a motion by Councillor T M Trollope-Bellew, seconded by Councillor D Brailsford, 
it was – 

RESOLVED (unanimous)

That the objection be overruled and the proposal as advertised and shown on the 
plan at Appendix B of the report, be implemented.

36    COUNTY MATTER APPLICATIONS

37    TO USE LAND FOR THE RECYCLING OF CONSTRUCTION, 
DEMOLITION AND EXCAVATION WASTES AT DUNSTON QUARRY, 
B1188 LINCOLN ROAD, DUNSTON - LEN KIRK PLAN HIRE LTD - 
N26/0434/16

(NOTE: Councillor A M Austin was informed by officers that because she had not 
been a member of the Committee when this planning application had been discussed 
in detail at the meeting on 4 July 2016, it was inappropriate for her to speak or vote 
on the planning application before the meeting, today).

Comments made by the Committee and responses by officers, as appropriate, 
included the following:-

1. Since the submission of the original planning application and subsequent grant of 
planning permission a few years ago there had been a change in the Development 
Plan with the recent adoption of the Minerals and Waste Core Strategy and 
Development Management Policies. Officers stated that there had been a change in 
planning policy so that the previous planning application had been assessed against 
previous planning policies and that the most up to date policy was the recently 
adopted Waste and Minerals Local Plan. Officers added that due to the fact that a 
condition attached to the original planning permission that planning permission had 
lapsed. The current application had to be assessed against the current Development 
Plan policies.
2. Would the application generate additional traffic on the B1188? Officers stated that 
the application would generate additional traffic on the local highway network given 
that there was currently no planning permission authorising the current recycling 
operations.
3. When the Waste and Mineral Local Plan was adopted was there any weight given 
to previous history of planning applications such as the one before the meeting 
today? Officers stated that as the previous planning permission expired before the 
adoption of the new Plan this could not be taken into account in the determination of 
the current application.
4. The planning application did not comply with the Waste and Mineral Local Plan 
and therefore should be refused as the Committee would be making an illegal 
decision. Officers stated that the Committee would not be making an illegal decision. 
However, the credibility of the Council could be affected if the Committee was 
determining similar planning applications in the future. 
5. When the Waste and Mineral Local Plan was being prepared was there no 
consideration given to special circumstances similar to the application being 

Page 7



PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE
25 JULY 2016

considered today? The Chairman stated that the Plan had been the subject of 
detailed consultation and all members of the Council had been given an opportunity 
to attend presentations about the Plan and make comment.

With the consent of the Committee, Councillor C J Davie, the Executive Councillor for 
Development, was allowed to speak and stated that the Council had invested a lot of 
time and resources in the preparation of the Plan and it was expected that planning 
applications should accord with the requirements of the Plan. He added that the Plan 
was aligned with the Economic Plan for Lincolnshire.

On a motion by Councillor M S Jones, seconded by Councillor N H Pepper, it was – 

RESOLVED (5 votes for, 2 votes against and 7 abstentions. Councillor T M Trollope-
Bellew requested that his name should be recorded as voting against)

That planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report..

38    PROPOSED LATERAL EXPANSION OF EXISTING FACILITY ONTO LAND 
LYING TO THE NORTH - N74/1453/15; AND PROPOSED VARIATION OF 
CONDITION ATTACHED TO AN EXISTING PLANNING PERMISSION SO 
AS TO INCREASE THE PERMITTED ANNUAL TONNAGE FROM 65,000 
TONNES PER ANNUM TO 260,000 TONNES PER ANNUM - N74/1446/15; 
AND PROPOSED VARIATION OF CONDITIONS ATTACHED TO 
EXISTING PLANNING PERMISSIONS AFFECTING THE PERMITTED 
WASTE MANAGEMENT OPERATIONS.  THE VARIATIONS SOUGHT 
RELATE TO THE HOURS CITED FOR THE DELIVERY OF MATERIALS 
TO THE EXISTING COMPLEX AND PROPOSES TO AMEND THESE TO 
ALLOW THEM TO TAKE PLACE BETWEEN 06:00 AND 19:00 HOURS 
MONDAYS TO FRIDAYS - N74/1447/15;  N74/1450/15; N74/1451/15; 
N74/1452/15 WILSFORD HEATH WASTE MANAGEMENT COMPLEX, 
HIGH DIKE, ANCASTER - MID UK RECYCLING LTD

Since the publication of the report the following response to consultation had been 
received:-

Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue – Have confirmed verbally that they assessed the 
applications and that from a fire safety perspective they have no objections. Since the 
fire in July 2015 Fire and Rescue have been working with the applicant and 
consequently a number of improvements have been made to increase the amount of 
water supply that is available to be used. Whilst further improvements can always be 
made there is currently no basis to object to the applications on the grounds of 
inadequate water supply.

Andrew Dowie, an objector, commented as follows:-

1. he was a member of the District Executive Committee of the Scout Council. The 
Grantham District Scout Council had been in existence for over 100years.
2. The Scout campsite at Copper Hill, Ancaster had been owned by the Grantham 
Scout Council for over 30 years. 

Page 8



PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE
25 JULY 2016

3. Gave a description of the site, the facilities available on the site and the use of the 
site by the Scouts and Guides.
3. Gave details of the investment which had taken place on the site including a new 
access road.
4. The original planning application ignored the occupation of the site by the Scouts 
and Guides.
5. Lack of consultation by the applicant despite frequent communications with the 
applicant in the past.
6. The industrial nature of the application would have a detrimental effect on amenity 
and tranquillity. 
7. One of the proposed buildings by the applicant was only 14 metres away from the 
campsite's fence line. The buildings would be intrusive and dominating and would 
extend over two thirds of the campsite's boundary.
8. 24 hour noise from the proposal would have a detrimental effect particularly at 
night when young people were trying to sleep under canvas.
9. The effects of the migration of dust and noxious odours to the campsite from the 
extended industrial use of the applicant's site. Reference was made to the effects of 
a recent major fire which caused smoke and other pollutants to spread towards the 
campsite.

Oliver Grundy, representing the applicant, commented as follows:-

1. The application would make a significant contribution to meeting market needs 
particularly the production of granular gypsum for cat litter and other purposes.
2. The application would also address the market for recyclable plastics and facilitate 
the recycling of old mattresses to provide fuel for heating.
3. Fire precautions by use of water run off to a lagoon would be provided to tackle 
any fire hazards.
4. The application met the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework.
5. The proposed extension north of the current site would allow spatial planning of 
the current site.
6. Alternative sites were not appropriate as the nearest urban area was Grantham 
and this would involve increased use of the local highway network by HGVs.
7. The proposal would allow the applicant to extend the conveyor belt system to 
transport material within the site.
8. An alternative site would necessitate the duplication of administration and other 
facilities on the applicant's site.
9. Any alternatives proposed would lead to the inefficient use of land and damage the 
applicant's viability.
10. A satisfactory Environmental Assessment had been submitted and this had 
addressed all of the concerns raised by the Scouts and Guides.
11. Most of the applicant's operation would be conducted in buildings and therefore 
noise would be reduced.
12. The applicant was prepared to plant additional woodland to screen his buildings.
13. The applicant considered that the concerns raised by the RAF at Barkston Heath 
could be addressed and hoped that the Committee would defer consideration of the 
application to await the outcome of these discussions.
14. Loss of jobs and contracts if the application was not approved.

Page 9



PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE
25 JULY 2016

Oliver Grundy responded to questions from the Committee as follows:-

1. The production of granular gypsum would take place in sealed units and contracts 
had been received for this product.
2. He had been informed that discussions about the application were to be held with 
the Scouts but these might have not taken place. The application was not expected 
to create any problems with the proposed buildings acting to reduce noise.
3. The application proposed the extension of work hours by one hour earlier and one 
hour later to reduce the impact of traffic on the local highway. The site would operate 
24 hours, 7 days a week and 365 days a year.

Councillor Barry Young, the local Member, commented as follows:-

1. He supported the objector's objections to recommendations No's 1 and 2 in the 
officer's report.
2. The campsite was used all year round and was an excellent facility for young 
people.
3. He had concerns about the applicant's proposed buildings being very close to the 
southern boundary of the campsite and the serious effects they would have on the 
amenity of the campsite.
4. The application did not meet the criteria set down in the recently approved 
Minerals and Waste Local Plan, the North Kesteven Local Plan and the Central 
Lincolnshire Local Plan.
5. The applicant had not met the wishes of RAF Barkston Heath.

Comments made by the Committee and responses by officers, as necessary, 
included:-

1. It was noted that the applicant's current site was handling more tonnage than had 
been given planning approval for.
2. The concerns raised by the local Member and local Parish Councils in connection 
with the effects of increased traffic passing through villages needed to be considered.
3. The County Council had a problem in recycling old mattresses and they caused a 
particular problem for the Energy from Waste plant in Lincoln.
4. What was the total increase in tonnage proposed by the applications and if this 
was not permitted was the increase in hours proposed in recommendation No's 3-6 in 
the report necessary? Officers stated that the overall increase in tonnage proposed 
was 220,000 tonnes and that recommendation No's 3-6 related to the delivery of 
materials to the site only. There would be no adverse impact by extending the hours 
as this would benefit the flow of traffic on the local highway and so was in its own 
right acceptable regardless of the proposed increase in tonnages on the site.

A motion moved by Councillor D Brailsford, seconded by Councillor Mrs J M 
Renshaw, that consideration of the planning application should be deferred pending 
a site visit to both the applicant's site and the Scout and Guide campsite, was 
defeated by 5 votes for, 8 votes against and 0 abstentions.

Page 10



PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE
25 JULY 2016

On a motion by Councillor W S Webb, seconded by Councillor G J Ellis, it was – 

RESOLVED (11 votes for, 0 votes against and 2 abstentions)

(a) That in respect of planning application No. N74/1453/15 (Application 1), that 
planning permission be refused for the reasons detailed in the report.

(b) That in respect of planning application No. N74/1446/15 (Application 2), that 
planning permission be refused for the reasons detailed in the report.

(c) That in respect of planning application No. N74/1447/15 (Application 3), that 
planning permission be granted for the variation of Condition 7 of planning 
permission N74/1374/10 and a new planning be imposed which replaces Condition 
No. 7 to read as follows:-

7. The delivery of materials in relation to the development hereby permitted shall only 
be carried out between the following hours:

06:00 and 19:00 Mondays to Fridays and
08:00 and 16:00 Saturdays, Sundays and Bank Holidays.

(d) N74/1450/15 (Application 4) - that planning permission be granted for the 
variation of Condition 8 of planning permission N74/1232/12 and a new
planning condition be imposed which replaces Condition 8 to read as
follows:

8. The delivery of materials in relation to the development hereby
permitted shall only be carried out between the following hours:

06:00 and 19:00 Mondays to Fridays and
08:00 and 16:00 Saturdays, Sundays and Bank Holidays

(e) That in respect of planning application No.N74/1451/15 (Application 5) - that 
planning permission be granted for the
variation of Condition 9 of planning permission N74/1238/12 and a new
planning condition be imposed which replaces Condition 9 to read as
follows:

9. The delivery of materials in relation to the development hereby
permitted shall only be carried out between the following hours:

06:00 and 19:00 Mondays to Fridays and
08:00 and 16:00 Saturdays, Sundays and Bank Holiday

(f) That in respect of planning application No.N74/1452/15 (Application 6) - that 
planning permission be granted for the
variation of Condition 2 of planning permission N74/1296/13 and a new
planning condition be imposed which replaces Condition 2 to read as
follows:

Page 11



PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE
25 JULY 2016

2. The delivery of materials in relation to the development hereby
permitted shall only be carried out between the following hours:

06:00 and 19:00 Mondays to Fridays and
08:00 and 16:00 Saturdays, Sundays and Bank Holidays

(g) That this report forms part of the Council's Statement pursuant to Regulation 24 of 
the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 
2011 which required the Council to make available for public inspection at the District 
Council's Offices specified information regarding the decision. Pursuant to Regulation 
24(1)(c) the Council must make available for public inspection a statement which 
contains:

content of decision and any conditions attached to it;
main reasons and considerations on which decision is based;
including if relevant, information about the participation of the public;
a description, when necessary, of the main measures to avoid, reduce
and if possible offset the major adverse effects of the development;
information recording the right to challenge the validity of the decision and
procedure for doing so.

The meeting closed at 12.00 pm

Page 12



:  
Regulatory and Other Committee

Open Report on behalf of Richard Wills, Executive Director for Environment 
and Economy

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee
Date: 03 October 2016
Subject: Traffic Regulation Orders – Progress Review 
Decision Reference:  Key decision? No 
Summary: 
This report informs the Committee of the position on all current Traffic 
Regulation Orders (Appendices A - E) and petitions received since the last 
meeting (Appendix F).

Recommendation(s):
That the report be received and the receipt of petitions be noted.

1. Background
N/A 

2. Conclusion
N/A

3. Consultation
N/A
a)  Has the Local Member Been Consulted?
N/A

b) Policy Proofing Actions Required
N/A

4. Appendices

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report
Appendix A North Division - East Lindsey Area
Appendix B North Division - Greater Lincoln and 

Gainsborough Area
Appendix C South Division - Boston and South Holland 

Area
Appendix D South Division – South Kesteven and 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4.1



Sleaford Area
Appendix E Explanatory Note on the Temporary 

Suspension of Traffic Regulation Order 
Reviews

Appendix F Petitions that have been received since the 
last report

5. Background Papers

No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report

This report was written by Paul Little and Satish Shah and who can be contacted 
on 01522 782070 or highways@lincolnshire.gov.uk.

Page 14



1033.X0R

                      
APPENDIX A

        
NORTH DIVISION – EAST LINDSEY AREA

PARISH LOCATION TYPE PREVIOUS POSITION PRESENT POSITION

1. Alford South Street Waiting/Loading Restrictions Operative date to be arranged Operative 09/09/16

2. Haltham A153 50mph Speed Limit Re-advertise As previous

3. Horncastle Spilsby Road Waiting Restrictions Advert 11/05/16 – 08/06/16 Operative 29/07/16

4. Horncastle West Street/Bridge Street Waiting/Loading Restrictions Operative date to be arranged As previous

5. Langrick / Brothertoft Various Roads Various Speed Limits Operative date to be arranged As previous

6. Louth London Road 40mph Speed Limit Operative date to be arranged As previous

7. Louth Eastgate, Lacey Gardens & 

Commercial Road

Waiting Restrictions Advert 08/06/16 – 06/07/16 Operative 09/09/16

8. Mablethorpe Various Roads (High Street etc) Waiting Restrictions Operative date to be arranged As previous

9. Maltby le Marsh / 

Beesby

Various Roads Speed Limit Amendments Consulting

10. Revesby A155/B1183 50mph Speed Limit Consulting Objections to be reviewed

11. Revesby West Lane Prohibition of Motor Vehicles Advert 03/08/16 – 31/08/16

12. Sibsey A16 Pedestrian Crossing Advert 20/04/16 – 18/05/16 Operative date to be arranged

13. Skegness Grand Parade / North Parade / 

South Parade

Waiting Restrictions Advert 30/03/16 – 27/04/16 Operative 04/07/16

14. Skegness Lumley Road Loading Bay & Bus Stop Clearway Advert 11/05/16 – 08/06/16 Operative date to be arranged

15. Skegness Roman Bank A52 Shared Cycle/Footway & Crossing Advert 11/05/16 – 08/06/16 Operative date to be arranged

16. Skegness Roman Bank A52 Bus Lane Advert 11/05/16 – 08/06/15 Operative date to be arranged

17. Sutton on Sea Alford road Waiting Restrictions Consulting Objections to be reviewed

18. West Keal Various Roads 30mph Speed Limit Operative date to be arranged

P
age 15



1033.X0R

APPENDIX B

NORTH DIVISION - GREATER LINCOLN & GAINSBOROUGH AREA

PARISH LOCATION TYPE PREVIOUS POSITION PRESENT POSITION

1. Bardney Horncastle Road Waiting Restrictions and Bus Stop Consulting As previous

2. Great Limber Brickyard / Church Lane 30mph Speed Limit Advert 20/04/16 – 18/05/16 Operative 09/09/16

3. Lincoln Brayford Wharf East One-Way / Cycleway Advert 05/05/16 – 02/06/16 Operative 01/08/16

4. Lincoln Clasketgate, Mint Street and 

Corporation Street

Various Waiting Restrictions, Taxi 

Rank and Loading Bay

Report to Planning and 

Regulation Cttee 09/05/16

Operative date to be arranged

5. Lincoln Clumber Street Review of Waiting Restrictions Operative date to be arranged

6. Lincoln East West Link Road Various Waiting Restrictions Advert 05/05/16 – 02/06/16 Operative 01/08/16

7. Lincoln High Street (St Marys Street to 

Tentercroft Street)

Pedestrianisation / One-Way Advert 28/04/16 – 26/05/16 Operative 01/08/16

8. Lincoln High Street Bus/Cycle Lane & Waiting/Loading Advert 05/05/16 – 02/06/16 Operative 01/08/16

9. Lincoln St Mark Street Right Turn Ban Advert 05/05/16 – 02/06/16 Operative 01/08/16

10. Market Rasen Queen Street Experimental Loading Restrictions On Going Experiment As previous

11. Navenby Village Roads Waiting Restrictions Reported to Planning and 

Regulation Committee

Operative 15/08/16

12. Welton Lincoln Road Bus Stop Facilities Operative date to be arranged As previous

P
age 16



1033.X0R

APPENDIX C

SOUTH DIVISION - BOSTON & SOUTH HOLLAND AREA

PARISH LOCATION TYPE PREVIOUS POSITION PRESENT POSITION

1. Boston Market Place Review of Waiting Restrictions Objections to be reviewed Operative date to be arranged

2. Boston Sussex Avenue, Arundel Crescent, 

Amberley Crescent and Rosebery 

Avenue

Waiting Restrictions Consulting Advert 10/08/16 – 07/09/16

3. Boston London Road Toucan Crossing Advert 18/05/16 – 15/06/16 Operative date to be arranged

4. Crowland Church Lane Waiting Restrictions Reported to Planning and 

Regulation Committee

Objections upheld. 

Alternatives to be investigated

5. Crowland East Street Waiting Restrictions Reported to Planning and 

Regulation Committee

Operative 07/10/16

6. Kirton Willington Road Waiting Restrictions Consulting As previous

7. Old Leake B1184 The Gride 50mph Speed Limit Operative date to be arranged As previous

8. Sutterton A17 Derestriction Consulting As previous

9. Wyberton Various Roads 30mph Speed Limit Consulting As previous

10. Wyberton A16 Pedestrian Crossing and 

Prohibition of Driving

Operative date to be arranged

P
age 17



1033.X0R

        APPENDIX D

SOUTH DIVISION - SOUTH KESTEVEN AND SLEAFORD AREA

PARISH LOCATION TYPE PREVIOUS POSITION PRESENT POSITION

1. Dembleby Various Roads 30mph Speed Limit Objections to be reviewed As previous

2. Grantham Church Street / Castlegate Waiting Restrictions Consultations imminent As previous

3. Grantham Langford Gardens Waiting Restrictions Consulting Operative 15/09/16

4. Grantham Londonthorpe Lane 40mph Speed Limit Operative date to be arranged

5. Grantham St Catherines Road and   

Welham Street

Waiting Restrictions Operative date to be arranged As previous

6. Heckington A17 50mph Speed Limit To be reviewed As previous

7. Ruskington Church Street Experimental Waiting 

Restrictions

Experiment Operative Permanent Order Operative 

09/09/16

8. Sleaford Duke Street Area Residents Parking Consulting Advert 24/08/16 – 21/09/16

9. Sleaford Mareham Lane / Boston Road Waiting Restrictions Awaiting CPO process As previous

10. Sleaford Mareham Lane Waiting Restrictions Operative date to be arranged As previous

11. Sleaford Southgate Street Café Licence

(Bear and Bean)

Reported to Planning and Regulation 

Committee

Licence Issued

12. Stamford Uffington Road Pedestrian Crossing Operative date to be arranged As previous

P
age 18



1033.X0R

Appendix E

Explanatory Note on the Temporary Suspension of Traffic Order Regulations 
Reviews

In November 2015 the Portfolio Holder agreed to a temporary suspension of 
Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs) progression.

Work on TROs is currently only initiated in the following circumstances:

a. TROs that were in progress at the start of December 2015.

b. TROs required as a result of collision investigation by Lincolnshire 
Road Safety Partnership.

c. TROs required to facilitate and progress new developments

Page 19



1033.X0R

APPENDIX F

The following petitions have been received since the last report.  They have been acknowledged 
and will be dealt with in the normal manner.

PARISH LOCATION PETITION FOR

Boston

Barkston / Syston

Dunholme

Fenton / Torksey

Grantham

Grantham

Holbeach

Walesby

Land off Robin Hoods Walk

Heath Lane / Green Lane

Watery Lane

A156

Barrowbygate

High Meadow

A17

Main Village Roads

Objections to Planning Application(relates 
to Traffic and Flooding  matters)

Objections to proposed Stopping Up / 
closure of highways.

Maintenance repairs to road

Request for footway between village areas

Review of Speed Limit and Road Safety

Review of traffic speeds and removal of 
tree

Pedestrian Crossing

Maintenance and repairs to roads

Page 20



Lincolnshire County Council 
 
Planning and Regulation Committee 3 October 2016 
 
• Location Map Attached 
 
Item: 5.1 – Land located off Gorse Lane, Denton 
 
The following additional information/representations have been received (comments 
summarised): 
 
Mick George Ltd (Applicant) - has submitted a 'Supplementary Planning 
Statement' which contains an assessment of the proposals against the policies 
contained within the recently adopted Core Strategy & Development Management 
Policies of the Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (CSDMP) (June 2016).  
This statement replaces an earlier similar assessment that is contained with the 
Environmental Statement but which was written before the CSDMP was formally 
adopted.  
 
It is argued that great weight should be given to the benefits of this proposal in terms 
of its supply of a scarce high quality resource and the giving up of a damaging 
historic consent in exchange for this development.  It is added that great weight 
should also be given to the economic effects of the proposal which will bring much 
needed economic activity to a relatively deprived rural area.    
 
Overall this document concludes that with the appropriate mitigation the proposal 
could be carried out in an acceptable manner consistent with the recently adopted 
CSDMP and the Government's sustainable development objectives without causing 
demonstrable harm to matters of recognised importance.  
 
A further letter has also been received along with a revised proposed scheme of 
working drawing (attached).  This has been submitted in order to try and address the 
Officer's third reason for refusal (i.e. impact upon the Hill Top Listed Buildings).  The 
revised scheme proposes to retract the mineral extraction limit further back to 300m 
from the nearest property and therefore allow the woodland to be positioned further 
away whilst still performing a screening function.  This revision would also reduce the 
duration of the development by 12 to 18 months and would also enable an existing 
mature Ash tree to be retained. 
 
South Kesteven District Council (SKDC) – has confirmed that the wording on their 
latest response to the application (dated 25 August 2016) may have implied that they 
have 'no objections' however this was an administrative error and instead should 
have read as 'Comments to Make'.  The response issued by SKDC made clear that 
LCC should take into account comments previously made and it is stated that 
despite the Further Information submitted by the applicant SKDC continue to have 
significant concerns about the proposal.  SKDC are not satisfied that the concerns 
raised by themselves or those of GOLAG, the Parish Council's and others have been 
satisfactorily addressed and on that basis objects to the application on the following 
grounds: 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5.



• No satisfactory evidence to demonstrate that the extant permissions are actually 
capable of implementation, and if so to what extent, and therefore that this is a 
genuine fallback position. 

 
• The development extends beyond the boundary of the historic permission and no 

satisfactory additional evidence has been submitted to demonstrate that there is 
any public benefit which outweighs the resulting conflict with the national and local 
landscape/environment policies or the harm to the setting of Listed Buildings at 
Hilltop Farm. 

 
• Other impacts do not appear to have been satisfactorily addressed in particular in 

respect of impacts upon the King Luds Entrenchment and Drift SSSI, water quality 
and quantity, loss of best and most versatile agricultural land, dust and noise and 
traffic. 

 
Denton Parish Council – request that it be noted that although the applicant has 
stated in their recently submitted 'Supplementary Planning Statement' that 'no 
statutory bodies have objected' to the proposals this is not correct.  Denton Parish 
Council along with Harlaxton Parish Council, Croxton Kerrial Parish Council and 
Hungerton Parish Council have all raised objections to the application. 
 
Gorse Land Action Group (GOLAG) – state that they have studied the applicant's 
Supplementary Planning Statement but consider that this does not provide any 
further evidence to support the application or address objections that have been 
raised.  GOLAG maintain that there is no requirement for a new source of limestone 
aggregate or additional landfill capacity within the County.  
 
GOLAG maintain their view that given the complex hydrogeology of the site and lack 
of evidence presented the proposal has the potential to have an adverse impact on 
water supplies.  GOLAG disagree with the advice/comments made by the 
Environment Agency and state that these should be disregarded and that LCC 
should seek an independent second opinion, supported by a field based assessment 
to address the concerns raised. 
 
Overall GOLAG maintain their objection to the application. 
 
Representative of the Hungerton Estate – state that there is still uncertainty with 
respect to the relationship between groundwater at the proposed quarry and the 
groundwater from the Hungerton Springs and therefore they continue to have deep 
concerns about the development.  Despite the mitigation measures proposed it is 
considered that the development would result in a derogation of water flows and 
quality at the Hungerton Springs and the headwaters of the Wyville Brook. 
 
Discussions have taken place between the applicant and the Hungerton Estate 
regarding the installation of a borehole close to the Hungerton Spring in order to 
allow further investigation and monitoring to take place.  However, agreement on the 
location of this borehole has not been reached and as such no further 
monitoring/investigation has taken place.  It is stated that until this site investigation 
and monitoring is completed it is considered that any groundwater mitigation 
proposed is flawed and may be unfeasible in the long-term and therefore maintain 

Page 22



their objection to the proposals as the development is likely to have a detrimental 
impact on the water environment. 
 
Public – a further representation letter has been received which objects to the 
proposal on the grounds that the development would take more land out of 
production and that the roads in the area are not considered suitable. 
 
Planning Manager's response – the revised working scheme drawing submitted by 
the applicant is noted however given its late submission it has not been possible to 
carry out formal consultation on the details.  Notwithstanding this, although the 
changes made would retract the extraction boundary further back, the mineral 
operations and woodland would still be closer than that which could potentially occur 
if the historic ironstone consent were to be reactivated and given their closer 
proximity would still alter the existing rural setting of these designated heritage 
assets.  Given that there is no quantitative need to justify the release of new mineral 
reserves at this time, and considering the adverse impacts that this development 
would have upon the setting of these designated heritage assets, it is still considered 
that there are no overriding reasons which outweigh the need to safeguard the 
significance of these Grade II Listed Buildings. 
 
In terms of the other additional information/responses, these are noted, however, 
none of these raise issues/matters that require further consideration or which would 
justify or warrant delaying the determination of the application.  As a result, the 
Officers recommendation and the cited reasons for refusal remain unchanged. 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



5.1 Denton 

P
age 25



P
age 26



P
age 27



P
age 28



P
age 29



P
age 30



P
age 31



P
age 32



P
age 33



P
age 34



P
age 35



6.1 Horncastle 

P
age 36



P
age 37



P
age 38



P
age 39



P
age 40



P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 Regulatory and Other Committee 
 

Open Report on behalf of Richard Wills  
Executive Director, Environment & Economy 

 

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee 

Date: 3 October 2016 

Subject: County Matter Application - S26/1611/15 
 

Summary: 

Planning permission is sought by Mick George Limited for the extraction of 
limestone and importation of sustainable inert fill to achieve a beneficial restoration 
of the site on land located off Gorse Lane, Denton, Grantham. 
 
The application is subject of an Environmental Impact Assessment submitted 
pursuant to the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) 
Regulations 2011 and an Environmental Statement has been submitted which 
assesses the potential impacts of the proposed development along with the 
mitigation measures proposed to avoid, reduce and, if possible, remedy any 
significant adverse impacts. 
 
This is a very complex proposal which raises a number of significant issues which 
need to be carefully considered.  The main key issues are considered to be: 
 
 the need and justification for the new mineral reserves and proposed landfilling 

operations; 
 an assessment of the main impacts associated with the current proposals; and 
 whether the current proposals (including the applicants offer to rescind their 

interest in those parts of the wider Denton ironstone consent under their control) 
offer an environmental benefit which outweigh the impacts associated with this 
proposal such that the development can be supported. 

 

Recommendation: 

Following consideration of the relevant development plan policies and the 
comments received through consultation and publicity it is recommended that 
planning permission be refused. 

 
Background 
 
1. On the 31 January 1955 the Minister of Housing and Local Government 

granted a permission for the winning and working of minerals and to carry 
out ancillary operations and calcining on land identified as falling within 
Denton, Harlaxton, Wyville, Stroxton and Great Ponton.  This permission 

Page 45

Agenda Item 5.1



(hereafter referred to as the 'Denton ironstone consent') allows not only the 
winning and working of ironstone but also the overlying limestone and 
covers an area of land extending over approximately 900 hectares.  It is 
understood that minerals were extracted across sectors of the consented 
area until the mid-1970's and although areas of the original permitted area 
have been worked out and restored, extensive areas of mineral remain 
within the wider Denton ironstone consent area and therefore are capable of 
being worked. 

 
 
2. Under the provisions of Schedule 13 of the Environment Act 1995, the 

Denton ironstone consent (along with 10 other ironstone consent areas) 
were included on the First List of Mineral Sites which identified all mineral 
sites within the County where the predominant mineral permission(s) were 
granted after 21 July 1948 and before 22 February 1982.  The First List 
provides for the review and updating of mineral sites and classified the 
status of those sites listed as being either 'active' or 'dormant'.  The Denton 
ironstone consent area (reference: MR/D/19) was registered as a dormant 
site which means that whilst there is an extant planning permission in place 
no minerals development may lawfully be carried out until an application for 
a new scheme of modern planning conditions (an 'Initial Review') has been 
submitted to and approved by the Minerals Planning Authority (MPA).  There 
is no time limit for making an Initial Review application with respect to a 
dormant site and consequently an application for new conditions can be 
made at any time. 

IDO Consent Area that could be implemented 

Page 46



3. In March 2012 the landowner indicated that it was their intention to re-
activate the dormant Denton ironstone consent and to submit an Initial 
Review application under the provisions of Schedule 13 of the Environment 
Act 1995.  A request for a Scoping Opinion from the MPA was subsequently 
sought to determine the extent and nature of the information that should be 
provided within an Environmental Impact Assessment which would support 
any such application.  In October 2012 the Secretary of State provided a 
response to this request. 

 
4. Following the issuing of the Scoping Opinion response, the applicant has 

stated that consideration was given to the implications of re-activating the 
extant Denton ironstone consent and the potential impacts upon the 
communities of Hungerton, Wyville, Harlaxton, Denton, Stroxton and Great 
Ponton.  Consequently, rather than progress the Initial Review of the Denton 
ironstone consent, the applicant has decided instead to seek a wholly new 
planning permission for the progressive winning and working of limestone 
and subsequent restoration of land using imported inert materials relating to 
an area of land covering 103.9 hectares to the south of Denton.  The land 
subject of this application includes land which forms part of the extant 
Denton ironstone consent area but also land which lies outside the 
boundaries of the extant permission. 

 
5. This report provides a summary of the proposals and development subject 

of that application. 
 
The Application 
 
6. Planning permission is sought by Mick George Limited for the the extraction 

of limestone and importation of sustainable inert fill to achieve a beneficial 
restoration of the site on land located off Gorse Lane, Denton, Grantham.  
The application site covers an area of approximately 103.9 hectares and is 
located approximately 3.8km from the south-western edge of Grantham, 
800m south of the entrance to the village of Denton, 1.5km to the south-west 
of the village of Harlaxton and 1.5km to the north-west of the village of 
Wyville.  The land subject of the application lies wholly within the 
administrative boundary of Lincolnshire but does lie on the border with 
Leicestershire. 

 

Page 47



 
 
7. 

 
8. 

Site L

The propo
release a
this reser
that appro
non-frost 
construct
not typica
such mat
Derbyshir
construct
addition t
300,000 t
some of w
which wo
estimated
around 20
years to c

The appli
waste (e.
generated
materials
levels.  O
is envisag
3,416,000

Location Plan

osed extra
pproximate

rve would c
oximately 
susceptibl
ion project

ally produc
erials are c
re and Pet
ion and de
o the limes
tonnes of b
which wou
uld be mo

d that over 
00,000 ton
complete. 

cation esti
g. unsalea
d by the de
, would be

Over the life
ged to be a
0 tonnes) w

n 

action area
ely 5,900,0
comprise o
1,900,000 
le Type 1) 
ts.  Non-fro
ed by othe
currently im
erborough

emolition w
stone aggr
building sto
ld be highe
re suitable
the life of 

nnes per an

mates that
able fine gr
evelopmen
 used to re

e of the qua
around 2,1
which wou

a extends to
000 tonnes
of limeston
tonnes wo
which is s

ost suscep
er limeston
mported fro
h.  Seconda
wastes can 
regate, it is
one would 
er quality d

e as walling
the quarry
nnum and 

t approxim
rained mate
nt and thes
estore the 
arry the vo
35,000m3

ld be impo

o around 8
s of limesto
e aggrega

ould be of a
uitable for 

ptible Type 
e quarries
om sites w
ary aggreg
also produ

s envisaged
also be re

dimension 
g and tumb
y the annua
therefore w

mately 1,70
erials, ove

se, along w
site back t

olume of im
(between 

orted at an 

84.6 hectar
one.  The v
te although
a higher qu
use in hig
1 limeston
within the

within place
gates from 
uce Type 1
d that appr
coverable 
stone as w

bled buildin
al throughp
would take

0,000 tonn
rburden, e

within impo
o near its o

mported ma
approx. 3,
approxima

res and wo
vast major
h it is estim
uality/grad
hway and 
ne aggrega
e County an
es such as 

the recycli
1 aggregat
roximately
from the s

well as ston
ng stone.  
put would b
e around 30

nes of quar
etc) would b
rted fill 
original gro
aterials req
202,500 a
ate rate of 

 

ould 
ity of 

mated 
e (i.e. 

ate is 
nd as 

ing of 
te.  In 
 200-

site 
ne 
It is 
be 
0 

rry 
be 

ound 
quired 
nd 

Page 48



 
Phasin
 
9. 

 

 
 
 

S

100,000m
imported 
processe
the worke
restoratio
the mater
aggregate
wastes w
off-site fo

ng Operati

The site w
phases (P
smaller 's
designed 
order to m
proposed
working w
areas are
into use.  
hectares 
alternativ

Simplified Ph

m3 (approx
wastes are
d at source
ed out phas
on of the sit
rials broug
e and there

would be pr
or use elsew

ions 

would be w
Phases A, 
sub-phases

to minimis
minimise th
d that topso
would be d
e capable o

It is envisa
site would
e habitats.

asing Plan 

. 150-160,0
e proposed
e and there
ses of the 
te.  Howev
ht to the si
efore appro
ocessed to
where. 

worked in a
B, C and D

s'.  The pha
se the area
he need to 
oils and su
irectly plac
of being res
aged that a
be in prod

. 

000 tonnes
d to have a
efore capa
quarry and

ver, it is en
ite would b
roximately 
o produce 

a phased m
D) which th
asing and 
a of active 
stockpile a
bsoils strip

ced onto ea
stored pro
at any one
ductive agr

s) per ann
already be
able of bein
d thus allow
visaged th

be available
15-16,000
recycled a

manner in a
hemselves
scheme of
operations
and handle
pped from 
arlier phas
gressively 

e time 87 h
ricultural us

um.  The m
en screene
ng directly 
w the prog

hat approxi
e to produc
tonnes of 

aggregate a

a sequence
 comprise 
f working p
s at any on
e soils unn
subsequen

ses ensurin
and are q
ectares of 
se or resto

majority of 
ed and 
deposited 

gressive 
mately 10%
ce recycle
the import

and export

e of four b
of several

plans have
ne time and
necessarily
nt phases 
ng that the
uickly put 
the total 1

ored to prov

the 

into 

% of 
d 
ted 
ted 

road 
 

e been 
d, in 

y, it is 
of 
se 
back 
03.9 
vide 

Page 49



10. A summary of each of the proposed phases is given below. 
 

Phase A – this phase is broadly central to the site and once the initial 'box 
cut' area has been exhausted workings would progress in a south-easterly 
direction.  This phase is broken down into a series of smaller 'sub-phases' 
(A1 to A9) which would each be worked out and then progressively restored 
as the operations advance.  The mineral would be worked out using 
excavators and dumpers typical of those used in quarries elsewhere within 
the County.  A mineral processing area/site office complex would be 
constructed in the south-western corner of this phase which would contain 
crushers and screeners used to process the mineral.  The plant site area 
would be retained within this phase until it is relocated to a new position 
during Phase C.  It is envisaged that it would take approximately 5.5 years 
to extract the reserves from within Phase A (assuming an anticipated 
production rate of 200,000 tonnes per annum). 

 
Phase B – following mineral extraction within Phase A, extraction operations 
would progress into Phase B which comprises of land situated between 
Willowbed Plantation (to the west) and Stony Track which runs parallel to 
the application sites eastern boundary.  Again this phase is broken down 
into a series of smaller 'sub-phases' (B1 to B13) which would each be 
worked out and then progressively restored as the operations advance.  
During 'sub-phases' B1 to B5 the extraction operations would continue in a 
northerly direction whereas during 'sub phases' B6 to B13 this would shift to 
a south-east to north-westerly direction.  It is envisaged that it would take 
approximately six to seven years to extract the reserves from within Phase B 
(assuming an anticipated production rate of 200,000 tonnes per annum). 

 
Phase C – this phase is located to the west of Phase A and would again be 
worked in a series of 'sub phases' (C1 to C9) and would be worked in a 
generally northerly direction with subsequent progressive restoration.  Once 
sufficient space has been created within this phase the mineral processing 
plant and site office complex that had been retained within Phase A would 
be relocated to a new position within the southern end of this phase.  It is 
envisaged that it would take seven years to extract the reserves from within 
this phase. 

 
Phase D – this phase is the final and largest area proposed to be worked 
and is located at the western end of the application site and therefore would 
be closest to The Drift SSSI which adjoins the site.  The operations would 
advance in a northerly direction again this phase is broken down into a 
series of smaller 'sub-phases' (D1 to D10) which would each be worked out 
and then progressively restored as the operations advance.  It is envisaged 
that it would take 12 years to extract the reserves from within this phase. 

 
11. In order to limit potential impacts upon The Drift SSSI a 25m stand-off would 

be provided between the boundary of the SSSI and the proposed mineral 
extraction boundary.  During the earlier phases of the development, this 
stand-off area would be created by planting two 12m wide areas of 
grassland which would be separated by a 1m wide drainage ditch.  The land 

Page 50



nearest to the SSSI would be planted to create calcareous grassland whilst 
the land on the other side of the ditch (which would provide physical 
separation between these areas) would be planted to create an area of 
conservation grassland.  During the working of Phase D, a subsoil bund 
(10m wide by 2m high) would be constructed upon the conservation 
grassland which would provide a physical barrier between the mineral 
operations and the SSSI.  Following the completion of the extraction 
operations the bund would be removed with the drainage ditch and land 
being restored to create a permanent 25m wide area of calcareous 
grassland. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Phasing Plan - Working Scheme Rev.B

Page 51



Restoration 
 
12. The site is proposed to be progressively restored back to near original land 

levels through the use of on-site soils, overburden and unsaleable mineral 
fines as well as imported inert wastes.  The restoration scheme contained 
within the application proposes to reinstate the majority of the land back to 
arable uses although the scheme also includes proposals to create new and 
improved habitats and wildlife corridors through the provision of high quality 
hedgerows, calcareous grasslands, broadleaved woodland blocks and 
wetlands.  A progressive five year aftercare programme would also be 
implemented in order to monitor, manage and ensure the successful 
establishment of the newly created and restored habitats.  It is stated that 
the restoration and aftercare proposals would contribute and enhance the 
natural and local environment and provide benefits to the eco-system 
including net gains in biodiversity. 

 
13. Further details of the proposed development including the restoration 

scheme are given within the summary of the Environmental Statement 
section of this report (below). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Restoration Proposals Plan RevA

Page 52



Rescinding of part of the extant Denton ironstone consent 
 
14. As stated earlier, part of the land subject of this application also forms part 

of the wider Denton ironstone consent area.  Consequently an extant 
planning permission exists which allows the extraction of minerals from that 
area of land subject first to the submission and approval of a new scheme of 
conditions as part of an Initial Review application.  However, rather than 
progress the Initial Review of the Denton ironstone consent, the applicant 
has instead decided to seek a wholly new planning permission which not 
only includes land which forms part of the Denton ironstone consent area 
but also land which lies outside the boundaries of that permission. 

 
15. If planning permission were to be granted for this proposal, the applicant has 

confirmed that the landowner along with another interested party would be 
willing to formally give up their rights to carry out mineral extraction on land 
under their direct control which forms part of the much larger Denton 
ironstone consent area.  The land covered by the whole of the Denton 
ironstone consent extends to over 900 hectares and the land which is 
proposed to conceded/offered up as a swap for permission to work the land 
subject of this application extends to around 708 hectares.  If permission 
was to be granted for the current proposals then the landowner and 
applicant have confirmed that these rights would be rescinded by way of a 
legally binding S106 Planning Obligation.  The applicant has submitted a 
draft version of such a Planning Obligation which confirms this intended 
commitment.  

 
16. Alternatively, if planning consent is not granted for this application then the 

applicant has stated that it is their intention to re-activate the wider Denton 
ironstone consent via an Initial Review application.  An Initial Review 
application and scheme of conditions cannot be refused and therefore the 
applicant states that it is against the background of the potential re-
activation and implementation of that consent that the environmental 
impacts of this proposal should be assessed.  It is therefore stated that the 
implementation of the extant Denton ironstone consent is a material 
consideration in the planning balance. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Environmental Statement 
 
17. The application is subject of an Environmental Impact Assessment 

submitted pursuant to the Town and Country Planning (Environmental 
Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011 (the 'EIA Regulations').  An 
Environmental Statement (ES) has therefore been submitted in support of 
the application which comprises of three volumes.  Volume I consists of a 
'Written Statement and Plans' whilst Volumes II and III contain the individual 
technical assessments and reports that have been conducted and which 
identify the potential impacts arising from the development and the 
mitigation measures that are proposed to be implemented in order to avoid, 
reduce and, if possible, remedy any significant adverse impacts. 

 
In accordance with Regulation 22 of the EIA Regulations further information 
(hereafter referred to as 'Further Information') was submitted to support, and 
in some cases replace, that which was contained within the original ES.  The 
Further Information is presented as Volume IV (received 21 April 2016) and 
contains further details relating to the mineral quality and quantity, details of 
the recycling operations, revised phasing plans, further hydrological and 
hydrogeological information, updated assessments in respect of the 
potential impacts on Belvoir Castle, the nearby Drift SSSI and recently 
designated Ancient Woodland (i.e. Waterbed Plantation) and comments in 
respect to the feasibility of an alternative restoration strategy which does not 
require the use of imported wastes. 

 
18. The original ES (Volumes I to III) along with the Further Information (Volume 

IV) are considered to meet the requirements of the EIA Regulations 2011 
and the contents can be summarised as follows: 

Denton ironstone consent area and land proposed as part of a S106 Agreement 

Page 54



Volume I 
 

Non-technical Summary – this document contains an overview of the main 
findings of the ES in an easily understandable and accessible format. 

 
Chapter 1: Introduction – this chapter sets out the background and 
planning history leading to this planning application, a description of the 
applicants company, a brief summary of the proposal along with a 
description of the methodologies adopted for undertaking the various 
technical appraisals contained within the ES along with a statement of the 
pre-application public and stakeholder engagement/consultation exercises 
undertaken. 

 
Chapter 2: Sustainable Development and Biodiversity – this chapter 
describes how the proposed development is considered to comply with the 
principles of sustainable development and how the development would 
make a contribution to the local environment through a sympathetically 
designed restoration scheme and through the provision of biodiversity gains 
and enhancements.  These specific biodiversity gains and enhancements 
include proposals to manage over 27 hectares of land off-site from the 
proposed quarry as part of a Nature Conservation Management Plan.  The 
proposed formal management of this land would secure areas of calcareous 
grassland and increase broadleaved woodland which the applicant states 
would have a lasting positive gain for biodiversity and the local environment. 

 
Chapter 3: Site & Environs – this chapter describes the general location of 
the proposal site and contains extracts taken from the various detailed 
technical assessments that have been undertaken as part the ES (contained 
within Volumes II and III of the ES) which describe the site and the wider 
environment in terms of its landscape character, existing background noise 
environment, features of ecological interest, the local highway network, the 
hydrological/hydrogeological regime, archaeological context and nature and 
quality of the soils lying within the site.   

 
A description of the underlying geology is also given which states that the 
area comprises of the Lincolnshire Limestone Formation (limestone) which 
is underlain by the Grantham Formation (clay, silt and sand) and 
Northampton Sand Formation (sandy ironstone).  The ES states that there is 
estimated to be some 5,900,000 tonnes of recoverable limestone aggregate 
within the site of which an estimated 1,900,000 tonnes are cited as being 
non-frost susceptible Type 1 aggregate which is not produced by other 
limestone quarries within the County.  In addition to the aggregate materials 
it is estimated that an additional 200,000 to 300,000 tonnes of building stone 
could be extracted from the site.  It is estimated that approximately 
1,700,000 m3 of quarry waste (e.g. overburden and unsaleable stone and/or 
fines) would be generated which would be used to aid the restoration of the 
site.  In addition to the overburden and unsaleable fines, around 
2,135,000m3 (between approx. 3,202,500 and 3,416,000 tonnes) of 
imported inert materials would also be imported and deposited within site to 

Page 55



aid the restoration and this would equate to an approximate input rate of 
100,000m3 (approx. 150-160,000 tonnes) per annum. 

 
Chapter 4: Proposed Development – this chapter contains a description of 
the proposed development including details of the proposed means of 
access, phasing programme and scheme of working, soil handling and 
management practices, details of proposed plant and equipment, HGV 
movements, hours of operation along with an overview of the proposed 
means of surface water management and dust suppression system.  This 
chapter also confirms that a wheelwash and floodlighting would be operated 
within the site although floodlighting would be restricted to around the mobile 
plant site area only and only operated during the winter months be 
downward facing in order to minimise any light spillage. 

 
Phasing Programme: this section confirms that the site would be worked in a 
phased manner and contains details of the proposed phasing plans and 
scheme of working.  The original plans have been slightly modified as part of 
the Further Information but continue to propose that the site be worked in a 
sequence of 4 broad phases (Phases A, B, C and D.  Further details of each 
of these phases have already been given above. 

 
Plant and Equipment: this section confirms that given the structure of the 
underlying limestone blasting would not be required and instead the mineral 
would be worked out using excavators and dumpers typical of those used in 
quarries elsewhere within the County.  The mineral would be transported 
from working phases using dump trucks and processed using crushers and 
screeners within a dedicated plant site area.  As described previously, the 
plant site area would initially be located within Phase A before being 
relocated to a new position within Phase C as the operations advance.  
Processed mineral would be loaded and transported off site in HCV's which 
would pass over a weighbridge and wheelwash facility before travelling 
along a surfaced internal haul/access road (initially 600m in length during 
the working within Phases A and B and 350m in length when working in 
Phases C and D) before entering the public highway. 

 
Highways and Traffic: it is anticipated that the site would produce around 
200,000 tonnes of limestone per annum which equates to around 4,000 
tonnes per week or 730 tonnes per day on average.  Products would be 
exported using articulated HCVs and four axle trucks (20 tonne payloads) 
and it is estimated that these would typically be in the order of five 
articulated HCVs and 30 four axle trucks per day.  Building stone would be 
periodically removed using flatbed HCVs which could equate to up to 10 
loads per week.  It is anticipated that imported fill materials would be 
returned to the site by HCVs exporting the mineral (i.e. backloaded) and 
therefore the traffic movements associated with this are captured within the 
above numbers, however, the assessment undertaken also allows for a 
potential additional five loads (10 movements) per day associated solely 
with this activity. 

 

Page 56



Access to the site would be gained via an entrance that would be created 
along Gorse Lane and which the applicant states would be designed in an 
asymmetrical configuration in order to ensure all traffic is forced to exit the 
site in a westerly direction back towards the A607 junction.  In addition to 
these physical works the applicant proposes that the routeing of traffic could 
also be restricted via a voluntary routeing restriction which would ensure that 
all HCV traffic travels westwards and thus does not travel along Gorse Lane 
back towards Grantham.  In addition to these measures, the application 
proposes that the section of Gorse Lane between the site access point and 
the junction with the A607 be widened along its entire length.  These works 
would result in the direct loss of 32m2 of the roadside verge where Gorse 
Lane crosses the boundary of the Drift SSSI.  All works proposed would be 
undertaken within the highway boundary (within Leicestershire and 
Lincolnshire) and would be secured and completed as part of a Section 278 
Agreement with each party. 

 
Hours of Operation: the proposed hours of operation for the quarry would be 
between 07:00 and 18:00 hours (Monday to Friday) and 07:00 and 13:00 
hours (Saturday) with no operations on Sundays or Public/Bank Holidays. 
As there are no dwellings located between the sites proposed access point 
and the A607 it is proposed that loaded HCVs would be permitted to leave 
the site from 06:00 hours (Monday to Friday) and it is stated that any noise 
arising from the movement of such vehicles would fall within acceptable 
levels (i.e. 42 dBA LAeq 1 hour). 

 
Dust Management: this section confirms that a dust management scheme 
would be implemented and this would ensure that measures are taken to 
minimise and control dust emissions arising from the development.  Details 
of such a scheme are proposed to be agreed by way of a planning condition 
but examples of possible measures and practices that could be adopted 
include the use of a water bowser, road sweepers, sheeting of HCVs, etc. 

 
Surface Water Management: a series of interlinked water treatment ponds 
would be constructed as part of the development and used to ensure that 
any silts or suspended solids within waters pumped and derived from within 
the base of the quarry are managed prior to them being discharged in a 
controlled manner.  A series of infiltration ditches would also be constructed 
around the site which lead to Jimmy Green's Wood and further ensure that 
the optimal recharge of groundwater is achieved. 

 
Finally, a third minor discharge point (Point D3) would be established to the 
north of Phase C where reeds would treat surface water that will not 
naturally flow into discharge point D1 although this would only be required 
for a limited period. 

 
Chapter 5: Design Statement & Restoration Scheme – this chapter states 
that the final restoration proposals for the site have been developed to be 
consistent with the objectives of the National Planning Policy Framework 
and provide for the progressive restoration of the land to an acceptable 

Page 57



landform and after-uses which are consistent with the surrounding land use 
context and character. 

 
The ES states that the restoration proposals for the site (along with the 
proposed off-site Nature Conservation Management Plan areas) would 
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment and provide 
benefits to the eco-system including net gains in biodiversity.  
Notwithstanding the proposal to reinstate the majority of the land to arable 
uses, these biodiversity gains would be provided through the creation of new 
and improved habitats and wildlife corridors including the creation of high 
quality hedgerows, calcareous grasslands, broadleaved woodland blocks 
and wetlands.  A progressive five year aftercare programme would be 
implemented in order to monitor, manage and ensure the successful 
establishment of the newly created and restored habitats.  Annual updates 
and review meetings with the MPA would be held in order to review the 
progress of operations undertaken in previous year's operations as well as 
to discuss proposals for the forthcoming year. 

 
The two Nature Conservation Management Plan areas are located outside 
the proposal site but are under the direct control and same ownership as the 
proposal site.  These two areas comprise of a mixture of woodland, 
grassland and wetland habitats which in total cover an area of over 27 
hectares – Wealdmore Covert and Brook (17.34 ha) and Waterworks Wood 
and Willowbank Plantation (9.8 ha).  The management and maintenance of 
these areas would commence during the first year of mineral extraction 
operations within the proposal site and would be reviewed on a rolling five 
year programme until the extraction operations cease – i.e. estimated 30 
years.   

 
Finally, the ES states that there are limited opportunities for the creation of 
additional Public Rights of Way within the application site and as such the 
landowner proposes to instead create a footpath route across other land 
within their control over which permissive rights for members of the public 
would be granted.  This new permissive footpath would extend 1.2km and 
provide a circular walk around land that is located to the west of Harlaxton 
village and adjoins the western boundary of the northern-most extent of the 
proposed Nature Conservation Management Plan area.  This permissive 
footpath would also provide linkages to existing Definitive Public Rights of 
Way which run west and south of Harlaxton (No. Harl/1/2 and Harl/4/2). 

 
The applicant states that the management of the Nature Conservation 
Management Plan areas and creation of the permissive footpath would be 
secured by way of a S106 Planning Obligation.  A draft version of such a 
Planning Obligation has been submitted by the applicant which confirms 
their intention to deliver upon this commitment. 

 
Chapter 6: Socio Economic Impact – this chapter considers the potential 
impacts the development may have on the social and economic lives of local 
communities. 

 

Page 58



The ES states that the mineral products industry is a key component of the 
economy both nationally and locally and makes a significant contribution to 
the wider economy.  The construction industry (which is a major customer 
for mineral products) accounts for 5% of Greater Lincolnshire's employment 
and the proposed quarry would produce materials which can be used in 
infrastructure and building projects undertaken in a wide market area 
surrounding the site and therefore support the economic growth of these 
areas. 

 
The ES estimates that the proposed quarry itself would contribute to the 
local economy through a range of means including: £2.4 million on capital 
expenditure and investment at the start of the project (e.g. civils, plant and 
equipment and infrastructure); £1.83 million annual spend on services (e.g. 
maintenance, vehicle running costs, fuel, utilities); £1.07 million annual wage 
bill and the creation of 31 full-time employees; £1.6 million annual tax 
contribution (e.g. VAT, Business Rates, Aggregates Levy, Vehicle Excise 
Duty). 

 
The project would also provide social benefits to local communities through 
the provision of a new permissive public right of way to the west of Harlaxton 
and allow access by local wildlife interest groups to the Wealdmore Brook 
which would be one of the proposed Nature Conservation Management Plan 
areas.  The applicant also operates a Community Trust Fund whereby local 
charities, voluntary or community groups within a five mile radius of the site 
would be eligible to make applications for grant funding to support projects 
which provide tangible community benefits.  Examples of such projects 
include village greens, playgrounds and facilities, nature reserves, etc. 

 
Chapter 7: Market Need Appraisal – this chapter contains a summary of a 
Market Needs Appraisal (contained within Volume I) which provides a 
review of the current and emerging waste planning policy and the findings of 
a market appraisal which was undertaken to determine whether there is a 
need for inert landfill capacity within the County and also whether sufficient 
inert material would be available to restore the site.  The assessment looked 
at the existing capacities available, predicted capacity thought the plan 
period and likely sources of inert waste materials.  This market needs 
appraisal was prepared in March 2015 and therefore is based upon 
information available at that time and also the then Pre-submission draft 
version of the Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan: Core Strategy 
and Development Management Policies document (CSDMP).  The CSDMP 
was considered during the Examination in Public in October 2015 and 
subsequently amended and formally adopted in June 2016. 

 
Having taken into account the predicted waste arisings, existing inert landfill 
capacity and potential reduction in capacity as a consequence of some 
existing sites closing due to restoration or planning permissions expiring 
during the plan period, the assessment concludes that even though 
recycling rates may increase in the future there would still be a shortfall in 
inert landfill capacity to dispose of the volume of inert waste generated 
within the County which could not be recycled.  The assessment notes that 

Page 59



the consideration has only been given to inert waste arisings derived within 
Lincolnshire, however, it is stated that inert wastes are typically sourced 
from within a 20 mile radius of the applicants sites and therefore the market 
area for these waste arisings could also potentially include sites and 
markets within Melton Mowbray, Newark and Nottingham. 

 
Chapter 8: Alternatives and Cumulative Impact - this chapter sets out the 
potential alternatives to the proposed development that the applicant has 
considered in carrying out the EIA.  The main alternatives identified and an 
outline of the reasons given as to why each of these alternatives has been 
discounted is summarised below: 

 
(i). Implementing the extant Denton ironstone consent - although the 

implementation of this permission remains an alternative, having 
considered the views expressed locally the applicant has chosen to 
formulate the current proposals and develop a much smaller area of 
land where the environmental impacts are considered to be 
significantly less. 

 
(ii) Not importing inert materials for restoration – if no materials were to be 

imported then the applicant states that the proposal site would have to 
be restored to a low level and this would have serious adverse impacts 
upon agricultural land quality, hydrology and hydrogeology and result in 
the creation of an unnatural landscape feature. 

 
It is stated that if materials are not imported to aid restoration the site 
would have to be restored to a low profile with steep slopes and 
therefore the vast majority of the site, which is currently classified as 
being 'best and most versatile' agricultural land, would not be capable 
of reinstatement.  The lack of imported materials and a lower 
restoration profile would also impact upon the local hydrology and 
hydrogeology as all drainage would have to be channelled to the north 
which would divert existing flows away from the south and the springs 
which feed the Wyville Brook.  This would therefore result in a change 
in hydrological conditions and adversely affect land further to the south.  
Finally, if materials are not able to be imported to the site this would 
also result in the creation of an unnatural landform which would be 
contrary to the landscape character of the area. 
 

 (iii) Revised sequence of working – it is stated that the direction and 
scheme of working have been carefully considered and revised from 
those initially considered in order to minimise the impact of the 
development on nearby residents.  Initially it had been proposed to 
work the site in a westerly direction however following discussions with 
the local residents within the Hill Top Farm Complex which overlooks 
the site, this was revised to reflect those as contained within the 
application which would see the operations commence within a central 
location before heading east and north-east.  The applicant states that 
this revised method of working is not ideal for optimal working but 
would allow the proposed tree planting belt which is planned between 

Page 60



the Hill Top Farm complex and the latter phases of the site to mature 
and thus minimise any impacts upon those properties. 

 
 (iv) Alternative screening for the Hill Top Farm complex properties – it is 

stated that initially consideration had been given to the construction of 
a 5m high screening mound immediately to the south of the properties 
within the Hill Top Farm Complex.  This mound would have had a 1:10 
slope down to the proposed and be grass seeded to form a shallow, 
semi-permanent hill which would provide both visual and acoustic 
screening. 

 
Following discussions with local residents of the Hill Top Farm Complex this 
proposed method of screening was revised to include the proposed planting 
of a woodland belt between the properties and the site from the outset.  By 
the time the workings approach this area the trees would have matured and 
therefore provide a more suitable visual screen and the soil mound would 
instead now be constructed on the site side of this woodland in order to 
provide an acoustic barrier.  

 
Cumulative Impacts: this section considers the potential for cumulative 
effects on the environment and amenity of local communities which can 
arise from multiple impacts associated with this development and/or due to 
simultaneous or successive quarrying operations in the locality. 

 
In the case of this proposal, there are no other operational quarries in the 
immediate vicinity of the site with the nearest being Great Ponton Quarry 
which is located to the east of the A1 and is approximately 6km to the east 
and of the proposal site.  The land to the east of the proposal site has 
previously been worked for ironstone although those operations ceased in 
the 1970's and the land has generally been restored.  Given the distance 
and intervening topography and land-uses between the proposal site and 
Great Ponton Quarry there is no intervisibility between these sites and 
therefore the ES concludes that there is no potential for cumulative 
landscape or ecological impacts.  Similarly, the routes to be used by HCV's 
to gain access to these two quarries are separate and consequently the ES 
concludes that there is also no potential for cumulative impacts in respect of 
traffic. 

 
Chapter 9: Environmental Considerations – this chapter provides a 
summary of the impacts of the development on different elements of the 
environment.  Detailed technical assessments relating to each of these 
elements support this chapter (contained within Volumes II & III). 

 
9.2 - Landscape & Visual Impact – a Landscape & Visual Impact 
Assessment (LVIA) has been conducted (contained within Volume II) which 
confirms that the implementation and operation of the proposals would give 
rise to temporary direct and indirect landscape impacts resulting from 
alterations to the landscape.  A supplementary report has also been 
submitted as part of the Further Information (contained within Volume IV) 
which considers the potential impacts of the development specifically upon 

Page 61



Belvoir Castle which is located approximately 5km to the north-west of the 
proposal site. 

 
The LVIA recognises that the mineral extraction operations would result in a 
change in the landform and result in the temporary loss of landscape 
features such as large arable fields and field boundary hedgerows.  Studies 
and field surveys undertaken as part of the LVIA indicate that the significant 
visual effects of the proposed development would be highly localised and 
states that to a very large extent views of the quarrying operation would be 
screened due to local topography and the presence of boundary hedgerows 
which vary in height and density and provide screening or a filtering effect of 
views.  To the north-west, north, east and south-east local woodland 
supplements the hedgerows and provide further screening and given the 
topography and position of the quarry there would be no inter-visibility 
between the quarry and local villages.   

 
The only residential receptors with views of the site are identified as being 
the dwellings associated with Hill Top Farm located to the north-east of the 
site.  In order to reduce the visual impact of the operations on these 
properties it is proposed to carry out advanced tree planting and construct a 
5m high bund in an area of land situated between these properties and the 
proposed extraction operations proposed within Phase D.  Phase D would 
not be worked until around year 20 of the development and therefore this 
woodland would by then be mature and help to screen views.  Other 
mitigation measures have also been developed as part of the proposals 
which the LVIA states would reduce the visual impacts of the development 
from other locations including Belvoir Castle and these include the use of 
temporary landscape bunds along site boundaries, the progressive infilling 
of the site using imported wastes in order to restore and bring the site back 
to near existing levels, replacement tree and hedgerow planting as part of 
the progressive restoration scheme and additional broadleaf woodland 
planting along the boundary of the site with the adjacent Willowbed 
Plantation (Ancient Woodland). 

 
The LVIA concludes that whilst there would be some temporary landscape 
and visual effects arising from the proposals, these effects would be 
temporary and experienced at site level or in the sites immediate vicinity.  
When considered against the wider landscape context and valued receptors 
within that context, on balance these landscape and visual effects are stated 
as being environmentally acceptable. 

 
9.3 - Hydrology & Hydrogeology - a Hydrogeological Impact Assessment 
has been conducted (contained within Volume II) which describes the 
existing hydrological and hydrogeological situation and considers the 
potential impacts of the development upon surface and groundwater 
resources.  In response to comments and representations received during 
the initial round of consultation on the proposals, the applicant also 
subsequently installed additional borehole wells around the site in order to 
monitor water levels within the limestone and underlying ironstone horizons. 
The locations of these boreholes were agreed in consultation with the 

Page 62



Environment Agency and water levels were monitored on a weekly basis 
between September 2015 and March 2016.  The aim of this additional 
monitoring was to obtain a fuller understanding of the groundwater regime 
and to improve the conceptual model that had been used in identifying and 
assessing the potential impacts of the development.  A supplementary 
report which contains the findings and results of this additional borehole 
monitoring along with a review of the original Hydrogeological Impact 
Assessment was submitted as part of the Further Information (contained 
within Volume IV). 

 
The assessments conclude that whilst the Lincolnshire Limestone 
(limestone) that is present across the site is classed as a principal aquifer it 
is largely unsaturated and considered to be essentially unproductive within 
the proposal site.  Groundwater potential is therefore limited to the 
underlying Northampton Sands (sandy ironstone) with the intervening 
Grantham Formation (clay, silt and sands) providing a restriction to 
groundwater flow.  Geological mapping indicates that the majority of springs 
and watercourses surrounding the site appear to coincide with areas where 
the Northampton Sands Formation outcrops and are therefore fed from the 
flow of groundwaters within this horizon.  However, there is one spring to the 
south east of the site (referred to as Hungerton Spring) which occurs where 
the Lincolnshire Limestone outcrops and that this spring coincides with 
central geological fault features which may provide a preferential flowpath 
within the Lincolnshire Limestone for groundwaters in the event that incident 
rainfall is sufficient to induce flows within the Lincolnshire Limestone 
horizon.  The latest assessment undertaken confirms that there is water in 
the base of the Lincolnshire Limestone horizon which is perched above the 
underlying Grantham Formation and this is collected in fissures, joints and 
beds as a result of incident rainfall but that there is no permanent saturated 
storage zone such that de-watering of the site would be required during 
mineral extraction operations.  The assessments therefore conclude that the 
Hungerton Spring is ephemeral. 

 
It is consequently concluded that the extraction of limestone from the 
majority of the site is unlikely to impact on the baseflow volume or quality of 
ground and surface water flowing south from Gorse Lane.  It is stated that 
the existing groundwater flow regime can be replicated using post-
restoration contouring which mimics the existing topographic highs and also 
directing and allowing surface water runoff during both the operation and 
restoration of the site to recharge the limestone via soakaways and 
infiltration ditches which would be constructed in appropriate locations 
around the site. 

 
9.4 - Air Quality - an Air Quality and Dust Assessment has been conducted 
(contained within Volume III) which considers the potential impacts of the 
development on existing air quality as well as identifying the potential 
sources of dust and possible dust control measures.  

 
In terms of air quality, the assessment concludes that the traffic movements 
associated with this development (approx. 40-45 trips or 80-90 two way 

Page 63



movements) would fall below the levels which are likely to increase nitrogen 
oxide levels (NO2) and therefore not have a significant impact on local air 
quality.   

 
In terms of dust, the assessment considered the potential dust receptors 
within 500m of the proposed operations in terms of site preparation and 
restoration works, mineral excavation and backfill and mineral processing 
and handling.  The assessment confirms that mineral excavation would not 
take place within at least 25m of The Drift SSSI or within 200m of any 
residential receptor and mineral processing operations would not take place 
within at least 500m of any residential receptor or The Drift SSSI.  The 
assessment identifies a series of dust suppression and operational practices 
that could be adopted and implemented as part of a site-specific Dust Action 
Plan. 

 
This section concludes that the development would be unlikely to cause 
adverse air quality impacts and that any dust arising from the operations 
could be controlled to ensure that unacceptable fugitive dust impacts are not 
caused to any nearby residential receptor or The Drift SSSI. 

 
9.5 - Noise - a noise assessment has been conducted (contained within 
Volume II) which considers the potential impacts of the operations on the 
surrounding area and nearby sensitive receptors.  The assessment confirms 
that existing background noise levels were recorded at representative 
locations around the site including at and/or close to the residential 
properties within the Hill Top Farm complex, close to the south-eastern 
corner of the site in order to assess potential impacts on Rookery Farm and 
Home Dairy Farm as well as within the village of Denton.  The potential 
impacts upon users of The Drift SSSI/Viking Way which is a Public Right of 
Way have also been assessed. 

 
The assessment takes into account the guidance and advice on the control 
of noise from mineral extraction operations as contained within the National 
Planning Policy Framework and relevant supporting Planning Practice 
Guidance entitled 'Minerals'.  The assessment states that the current 
guidance advises that Public Rights of Way (i.e. The Drift SSSI/Viking Way) 
are not normally considered to be noise sensitive receptors and therefore 
the noise criteria and thresholds applied when considering impacts on 
dwellings is not normally applicable.  However, consideration has still be 
given to the potential impacts of the development on users of The Drift 
SSSI/Viking Way and reference has therefore been given to previous 
Mineral Planning Guidance (contained within MPG11 which was replaced in 
2005) which had suggested a noise level of 65 dB LAeq 1 hour was an 
appropriate limit and therefore has been applied in this instance. 

 
The assessment predicts the potential noise levels arising from both normal 
operations and temporary activities and considers these in terms of their 
compliance with the acceptable levels specified within the above guidance. 

 

Page 64



In respect of temporary operations (e.g. soil stripping, bund construction), 
the worst case predicted levels for all locations would fall below the 70 dB(A) 
maximum level cited within the guidance.  In the case of the Hill Top Farm 
Complex the estimated level is cited as being around 51 dB(A) and in the 
vicinity of Home Dairy Farm and Rookery Farm the cited level would be 
around 46 dB(A).  For The Drift SSSI/Viking Way during Phases A and B the 
operations would be some 800m to the east and therefore noise levels 
would principally be associated with the processing operations with noise 
levels being predicted to be 18 to 23 dB(A) below the acceptable criteria 
level.  As operations advance into Phases C and D, a subsoil bund would be 
constructed alongside the western boundary of the site and the noise levels 
associated within the normal operations would remain 10 dB below the 65 
dB LAeq 1 hour limit.  For normal operations, the predicted noise levels are 
similarly predicted to fall below the 55 dB(A) maximum level cited within the 
current planning practice guidance by between 2 and 8dB. 

 
This section consequently concludes that with the implementation of 
appropriate mitigation and control measures (as proposed within the 
scheme – e.g. bunds, stand-offs and positioning of equipment, etc), noise 
levels associated with the development would fall within acceptable limits 
and therefore would not have a significant adverse impact on the nearby 
residents or other nearby land-uses. 

 
9.6 - Highways - a Transport Assessment (TA) has been carried out 
(contained within Volume II) which considers the potential impacts of the 
development on the local highway network.  The TA indicates that the 
development would generate around 40 HCV trips (80 two-way movements) 
per day which on average equates to around three trips (six two-way 
movements) per hour.  The TA has, however, considered a higher maximum 
figure as a worse-case scenario and also takes into account accident 
records in order to determine whether there are any specific safety issues 
which would be exacerbated by the proposed development.  The results 
indicate that there would not be any significant impact on the function or 
safety of the highway network as a result of this proposal.  The TA also 
confirms that access to the site would be gained via an entrance that would 
be created along Gorse Lane and which the applicant states would be 
designed in an asymmetrical configuration in order to ensure all traffic is 
forced to exit the site in a westerly direction back towards the A607 junction.  
After travelling along Gorse Lane, the majority of HCV traffic is expected to 
then travel via the A607 to the A1 where it will travel north and south to suit 
market demands at the time.  The applicant has proposed that the routeing 
of traffic could also be restricted via a voluntary routeing restriction (secured 
as part of a S106 Planning Obligation) which would ensure that all HCV 
traffic travels westwards and thus does not travel along Gorse Lane back 
towards Grantham or through the local villages.  A draft version of a 
Planning Obligation has been submitted by the applicant which confirms 
their intention to deliver upon this commitment.  In addition to the routeing 
restriction and upgrade of the existing access, the application also proposes 
that the section of Gorse Lane between the site access point and the 
junction with the A607 be widened along its entire length.  These works 

Page 65



would result in the direct loss of part of the existing verge where it falls within 
the boundary of the Drift SSSI.  All works proposed would be undertaken 
within the highway boundary (within Leicestershire and Lincolnshire) and 
would be secured and completed as part of a Section 278 Agreement with 
each party. 

 
The TA concludes that the development would be acceptable in highways 
and transport terms. 

 
9.7 - Nature Conservation – an Ecological Assessment has been carried 
out (contained within Volume II) which contains the results of an Extended 
Phase 1 Habitat and Protected Species Surveys of the proposal site.  
Supplementary ecological reports have also been submitted as part of the 
Further Information (contained within Volume IV) which consider the 
potential impacts of the road widening/improvement works proposed along 
Gorse Lane upon The Drift SSSI and the roadside verges as these would be 
directly impacted upon and sections of these lost to accommodate the 
proposed works. 

 
The ecological assessments confirm that there are no nature conservation 
sites of international importance located within 5km of the site (e.g. Special 
Areas of Conservation, Special Protection Areas & RAMSAR sites).  There 
are however sites of national nature conservation value immediately 
adjacent to the site which includes The Drift Site of Special Scientific Interest 
and Willowbed Plantation which has recently been designated as an area of 
Ancient Woodland.  There are also a number of non-statutory sites of nature 
conservation value (e.g. Local Wildlife Sites (LWS), Sites of Nature 
Conservation Importance (SNCI)) within 1km of the site which are primarily 
comprise of roadside verges which comprise of neutral and limestone 
grassland. 

 
The assessments conclude that the mineral extraction site does not contain 
any designated sites of nature conservation value and largely comprises of 
large arable fields separated by hedgerows which are assessed as being 
generally of limited value.  The various species surveys undertaken have not 
identified any evidence of bats, badgers, amphibians, reptiles (inc. great 
crested newts) within the proposal site itself and as the arable fields are 
intensively managed and of an open and exposed nature, they offer poor 
quality habitat overall and only sub-optimal foraging and commuting habitat 
for most species.  The site does however support a number of breeding 
birds some of which are notable farmland bird species which are in decline 
although the habitat (e.g. intensively farmed fields) are a common feature of 
the surrounding landscape and so alternatives exist and also the operations 
would be phased so as to minimise the total land within operation at any one 
time thus minimising the loss and therefore impact on such species.   

 
A series of mitigation and compensation measures are proposed as part of 
the development to minimise and off-set any adverse impacts which include 
(inter alia): 
 

Page 66



 the implementation of a drainage strategy to ensure that there are no 
significant alterations to the hydrology of The Drift SSSI and 
implementation of a stand-off distance between the proposed mineral 
extraction working area the SSSI; 

 progressive working and restoration of the site in order to minimise the 
loss of landscape; 

 implementation of a Dust Action Plan to control fugitive emissions and 
impacts on the nearby Drift SSSI; 

 timing of any site clearance and soil stripping operations to avoid bird 
nesting/breeding season and minimising the use of artificial lights so as 
to reduce impacts on foraging bats; 

 retention of an existing veteran tree within the site and any retained trees 
and hedgerows to be afforded suitable protection during construction 
activities; 

 implementation of a conservation-led management plan for two areas of 
land located off-site which in total cover an area of 27 hectares.  The 
management of these areas would maintain and promote the creation of 
habitats including wet marshland, woodland and semi-improved 
grassland which would provide opportunities for a range of fauna and 
secure wider bio-diversity benefits; 

 creation of new habitats including calcareous grassland and the planting 
of new species rich hedgerows and broadleaved trees as part of the 
restoration proposals. 
 

9.8 - Archaeology - an archaeological evaluation has been completed 
(contained within Volume III) which comprises of a desk-based assessment, 
phased geophysical survey and subsequent programme of trial trenching 
where a total of 35 targeted trenches were excavated and evaluated. 

 
The assessments confirmed that there is a Roman Villa and bathhouse less 
than 400m to the east of the site and that Gorse Lane itself follows the line 
of a minor Roman road which probably gave access to the villa.  Roman 
settlement remains have also been identified immediately to the north of the 
site and the results of the trial trenching programme confirmed that the 
majority of the features encountered (e.g. extraction pits, enclosures, 
boundaries and trackways) dated to the middle/late Iron Age.  A single lime 
kiln, of probable Roman date was also revealed in the far south-west corner 
of the site. 

 
An assessment of the impact of the proposals upon designated heritage 
assessments has also been conducted which confirms that there is potential 
for indirect visual impacts upon the Grade II Listed properties within the Hill 
Top Farm Complex however these would be mitigated by the carrying out of 
the advanced tree planting proposals within the land between these 
properties and the site.  The main impact on non-designated heritage assets 
(e.g. archaeology) would come through the removal of the historic 
landscape however the assessments undertaken have revealed that the 
assets are of local importance and not of national or regional importance. 
Nevertheless it is proposed that a programme of archaeological work (e.g. 
strip, map and record) be carried out as part of the excavation works which 

Page 67



would not only allow for a full record and better understanding of these 
assets to be made but would also add to the understanding of the previously 
recorded assets which surround the site. 

 
9.9 – Soils – a soils assessment has been undertaken (contained within 
Volume II) which identifies the existing soil resources available and 
highlights that the majority of the soils within the site are classed as being 
Grade 3a and therefore 'best and most versatile'.   

 
Soils are to be retained and incorporated as part of the proposals and 
therefore would be stripped, handled and stored in accordance with best 
practice techniques in order to ensure that they are not damaged.  The 
assessment identifies that there would be around 350,000m3 of soil within 
the site which would be sufficient to for a 350mm thick soil resource over the 
restored landform however, it is recommended that the thickness of the soil 
profile be 1.2m thick and therefore there would be a shortfall of 850mm or 
850,000m3 over the total restored site area.  The assessment recommends 
that this shortfall be met using discarded limestone processing wastes and 
this would provide a suitable substrate which would extend the rooting depth 
beneath the soils profile and enable the land to be restored back to Grade 
3a agricultural quality. 

 
Chapter 10: Heads of Terms – as part of the proposals the applicant has 
offered to undertake works and give commitments on land outside the 
planning application boundary and consequently proposes that these 
matters be secured by way of a legally binding Section 106 (S106) planning 
obligation/agreement.  The original ES set out the broad terms/matters to be 
included within any such agreement which included a restriction on HCV 
routeing, securing and committing the applicant and landowner to the 
management of two nature conservation areas (approx. 27 ha), securing the 
creation of a permissive footpath and establishment of a liaison forum.  As 
part of this agreement the applicant also offers to rescind that part of the 
extant ministerial ironstone consent insofar as it relates to land within the 
control of the applicant/landowner.  The area of land covers approximately 
614.4 hectares and includes area that have not previously been worked out 
but also areas of previously works land which it is stated could potentially be 
re-extracted in order to recover previously discarded mineral. 

 
The applicant has subsequently submitted a draft copy of a S106 legal 
agreement (received 8 August 2016) which reaffirms their commitment and 
intention to provide the above in the event that planning permission is to be 
granted. 

 
Chapter 11: Summary and Conclusions – this chapter draws together the 
issues discussed in the previous chapters and concludes that the proposed 
development can be worked and progressively restored in a phased manner 
and operated to high environmental standards to ensure there is no material 
harm to local amenity or local conservation interests. 

 

Page 68



Volumes II & III – these volumes contain copies of various technical 
assessments and reports which are included as Annexures to the main ES 
and the contents of which are summarised and form the basis of the 
contents of Volume I.  The various annexures and reports are as follows: 

 
Annexure 1: Landscape & Visual Impact Assessment 
Annexure 2: Soil Resources Assessment 
Annexure 3: Noise Assessment 
Annexure 4: Transport Assessment 
Annexure 5: Ecological Assessment 
Annexure 6: Hydrological Impact Assessment 
Annexure 7: Archaeological Evaluation Report 
Annexure 8: Air Quality & Dust Assessment 
Annexure 9: Market Appraisal (Inert wastes arisings and available landfill 
capacity) 
Annexure 10: Copies of the extant Denton Ironstone Consent 

 
Volume IV – this volume contains the 'Further Information' that was 
submitted pursuant to Regulation 22 of the EIA Regulations and contains 
further details relating to the mineral quality and quantity, details of the 
recycling operations, revised phasing plans, further hydrological and 
hydrogeological information, updated assessments in respect of the 
potential impacts on Belvoir Castle, The Drift SSSI and Waterbed Plantation 
Ancient Woodland. 

 
Site and Surroundings 
 
19. The application site covers an area of approximately 103.9 hectares and is 

located approximately 3.8km from the south-western edge of Grantham, 
800m south of the entrance to the village of Denton, 1.5km to the south-west 
of the village of Harlaxton and 1.5km to the north-west of the village of 
Wyville.  The site comprises several arable fields with close cropped internal 
hedgerows some of which have been removed to enlarge field sizes.  The 
site is bound by mature hedgerows and woodland with The Drift Site of 
Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and part of the Viking Way immediately 
adjoining the site along its south-western boundary and the Willowbed 
Plantation (Ancient Woodland) which adjoins the sites north-western 
boundary.   

 
20. The northern boundary of the site is varied as it follows the field boundaries 

along the shoulder of the scarp slope.  This boundary generally comprises of 
low managed hedgerows with sections of post and mesh fencing and in the 
north-eastern corner lies a small copse of mature trees known as Dilworth 
Clump which would be retained as part of the development.  The eastern 
boundary of the site is defined by a mature hedgerow which is maintained at 
a height of around 2m and borders Stony Track which is a road running 
between the village of Denton and Gorse Lane. 

 
21. In the south-eastern corner of the site lies a rectangular block of woodland 

known as Jimmy Green's Wood which also hides a small disused limestone 

Page 69



quarry and again would be retained as part of the development.  The sites 
southern boundary runs parallel to Gorse Lane and is marked by an 
overgrown hedgerow which is dense in places but gappy in others and 
generally is around 3m in height.  There are a number of mature trees within 
this hedgerow with the greatest proportion being located more towards the 
west. 

 
22. The western boundary of the site is also marked by a native hedgerow 

which contains some gaps and is maintained at around 2.5m in height.  This 
hedgerow separates the site from the adjoining The Drift SSSI which is an 
unmade track which runs alongside the south-western boundary of the site 
and which is designated as a SSSI due to the value of the limestone 
grassland.  The Viking Way, a long distance route from the Humber to 
Lincoln, follows The Drift SSSI as it runs past the site.  The Drift SSSI also 
marks the administrative boundary between Lincolnshire and Leicestershire. 

 
23. The nearest dwellings to the site are located towards the north-western 

corner of the site and are a mixture of traditional farmhouses and barn 
conversions known referred to as the Hill Top Farm complex.  The Hill Top 
Farmhouse and some of the associated barns are Grade II Listed.  The 
paddocks associated with these properties provide separation between the 
application site boundary and these properties (approx. 100m) and this 
distance would be increased to approx. 200m as the proposed extraction 
boundary within Phase D would be set back further.  The other nearest 
properties/dwellings to the site are located to the south of Gorse Lane 
beyond Jimmy Green's Wood which is located in the south-eastern corner of 
the site.  These are Home Farm Dairy (approx. 90m), Rookery Farm 
(approx. 350m south) and Hungerton Hall and its associated stables which 
are also Grade II Listed (approx. 390m to the south-east). 
 

24. Finally, access to the site would be provided by upgrading an existing field 
access onto Gorse Lane approximately 100m to the east of The Drift SSSI.  
The access would be constructed in an asymmetrical configuration in order 
to force all traffic to exit the site in a westerly direction back towards the 
A607.  The A607 lies to the north of the site and runs in a generally south-
west to north-east direction linking Grantham and Melton Mowbray. 

 
Main Planning Considerations 
 
National Guidance 
 
25. National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (March 2012) sets out the 

Government’s planning policies for England and is a material planning 
consideration in the determination of planning applications.  In assessing 
and determining development proposals, Local Planning Authorities should 
apply the presumption in favour of sustainable development.  The main 
policies/statements set out in the NPPF which are relevant to this proposal 
are as follows (summarised): 

 

Page 70



Paragraph 17 - seeks to secure a good standard of amenity for all existing 
and future occupants of land and buildings. 
 
Paragraph 32 – states that all development that generates significant 
amounts of movements should be supported by a Transport Statement or 
Transport Assessment.  Decisions should take account of whether, amongst 
other things, safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all 
people. 
 
Paragraph 103 - seeks to ensure that flood risk is not increased on or off-
site as a result of development. 
 
Paragraph 109 - seeks to conserve and enhance the natural environment. 
 
Paragraph 112 - seeks to protect the best and most versatile agricultural 
land and states a preference for development to be located on poorer quality 
land to that of a higher quality. 
 
Paragraph 118 - seeks to conserve and enhance biodiversity and gives 
protection to Sites of Special Scientific Interest. 
 
Paragraph 120 - seeks to prevent unacceptable risks from pollution and 
protect general amenity. 
 
Paragraph 122 - states that local planning authorities should focus on 
whether the development itself is an acceptable use of land, and the impact 
of the use, rather than the control of processes or emissions themselves 
where these are subject to approval under pollution control regimes.  Local 
planning authorities should assume that these regimes will operate 
effectively. 
 
Paragraph 123 - seeks to prevent adverse impacts as a result of noise 
pollution. 
 
Paragraphs 128 to 135 - require that the significance of heritage assets (inc. 
non-designated assets) be taken into consideration, including any impacts 
on their setting. 
 
Paragraph 142 - recognises the importance of minerals reserves and the 
need to make best use of them. 
 
Paragraph 144 - sets out a series of criteria to be taken into account when 
determining applications for minerals development, including ensuring that 
there are no unacceptable adverse impacts on the natural and historic 
environment and human health and that the cumulative effects from multiple 
individual sites are taken into account; ensure that any unavoidable noise, 
dust and particle emissions are controlled and mitigated and establish noise 
limits for extraction in proximity to noise sensitive properties; and provide for 
restoration and aftercare at the earliest opportunity to high environmental 
standards. 

Page 71



Paragraph 145 – states that mineral planning authorities should plan for a 
steady and adequate supply of aggregates by, amongst other things, 
making provision for the maintenance of a landbank of at least 10 years for 
crushed rock.  It is also stated that longer periods may be appropriate to 
take account of locations of permitted reserves relative to markets and 
productive capacity of permitted reserves. 
 
Paragraphs 186 and 187 – state that local planning authorities should 
approach decision-taking in a positive way to foster the delivery of 
sustainable development and should look for solutions rather than problems 
and decision-takers at every level should seek to approve applications for 
sustainable development where possible.  Local planning authorities should 
work proactively with applicant to secure developments that improve the 
economic, social and environmental conditions in the area. 
 
Paragraphs 215 and 216 - state that 12 months after the publication of the 
NPPF (2012) due weight should be given to relevant policies in existing 
plans according to their degree of consistency with the NPPF, with the 
closer the policies in the plan to the policies in the NPPF, the greater the 
weight that may be given.  Weight may also be given to relevant policies 
contained within emerging plans with greater weight being afforded to taking 
into account their stage of preparation and/or the extent to which there are 
unresolved objections to relevant policies. 
 
In addition to the NPPF, in March 2014 the Government published the web-
based National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG).  The NPPG also sets out 
the overall requirements for minerals sites, including in relation to assessing 
environmental impacts such as noise and dust and the need for minerals 
sites to be restored at the earliest opportunity to high environmental 
standards. 
 
The National Planning Policy for Waste (October 2014) sets out the national 
approach to waste management.  A key focus of this is the requirement to 
drive waste management up the waste hierarchy, addressing waste as a 
resource and only looking to disposal as a last option.  It advocates the 
proximity principle of dealing with waste as close as possible to its source.  
Appendix B sets out the locational criteria against which the suitability of 
sites for waste management should be assessed.  

 
Adopted Local Plan Context 
 
26. Lincolnshire Minerals & Waste Local Plan: Core Strategy and 

Development Management Policies (CSDMP) (2016) – this document was 
formally adopted on 1 June 2016 and as a recently adopted document the 
policies contained therein should be given great weight in the determination 
of planning applications.  The key policies of relevance in this case are as 
follows (summarised): 

 
Policy M1 (Recycled and Secondary Aggregates) states that planning 
permission will be granted for recycling/reprocessing of materials for use as 

Page 72



secondary aggregate in appropriate locations specified in Policy W4 and 
where proposals accord with all relevant Development Management Policies 
set out in the Plan. 

 
Policy M5 (Limestone) states that proposals for extensions to existing 
limestone extraction sites or new limestone extraction sites (other than small 
scale extraction of building stone) will be permitted provided that they meet 
a proven need that cannot be met by existing sites/sources and accord with 
all relevant Development Management Policies set out in the Plan. 

 
Policy W1 (Future Requirements for New Waste Facilities) states that the 
County Council will, through the Site Locations document, identify locations 
for a range of new or extended waste management facilities within 
Lincolnshire where these are necessary to meet the predicted capacity gaps 
for waste arisings in the County up to and including 2031. 

 
Policy W3 (Spatial Strategy for New Waste Facilities) states that Proposals 
for new waste facilities, including extensions to existing waste facilities, will 
be permitted in and around the following main urban areas as indicated on 
the key diagram subject to the criteria of Policy W4: 
 
 Lincoln; 
 Boston; 
 Grantham; 
 Spalding; 
 Bourne; 
 Gainsborough; 
 Louth; 
 Skegness; 
 Sleaford; and 
 Stamford. 
 
Proposals for new waste facilities, outside the above areas will only be 
permitted where they are: 
 
 facilities for the biological treatment of waste including anaerobic 

digestion and open-air windrow composting (see Policy W5); 
 the treatment of waste water and sewage (see Policy W9); 
 landfilling of waste (see Policy W6); 
 small-scale waste facilities (see Policy W7). 

 
Proposals for large extensions to existing facilities, outside of the above 
areas will only be permitted where it can be demonstrated that they meet an 
identified waste management need, are well located to the arisings of the 
waste it would manage and are on or close to an A class road and meet the 
criteria of Policy W4. 

 
Policy W4 (Locational Criteria for New Waste Facilities) identifies the type of 
land suitable for the purpose in and around main urban areas.  Proposals for 

Page 73



new waste facilities, including extensions to existing waste facilities, in and 
around the main urban areas set out in Policy W3 will be permitted provided 
that they would be located on: 
 
 previously developed and/or contaminated land; or 
 existing or planned industrial/employment land and buildings; or 
 land already in waste management use; or 
 sites allocated in the Site Locations Document; or 
 in the case of biological treatment the land identified in Policy W5. 

 
Proposals for the recycling of construction and demolition waste and/or the 
production of recycled aggregates in and around the main urban areas set 
out in Policy W3 will also be permitted at existing Active Mining Sites. 

 
In the case of large extensions to existing waste facilities, where the 
proposals do not accord with the main urban areas set out in Policy W3, 
proposals will be permitted where they can demonstrate they have met the 
above criteria.  Small scale facilities that are not in and around the main 
urban areas will be considered under Policy W7.  

 
Proposals must accord with all relevant Development Management Policies 
set out in the Plan. 

 
Policy W6 (Landfill) states that planning permission will only be granted for 
new landfills or extensions to existing landfills (inert, non-hazardous) 
provided that: 
 
 it has been demonstrated that the current capacity is insufficient to 

managed that waste arising in Lincolnshire or its equivalent, which 
requires disposal to landfill in the County; and 

 there is a long term improvement to the local landscape and the 
character of the area, with enhanced public access where appropriate; 
and 

 the development would not cause a significant delay to the restoration of 
existing waste disposal sites; and 

 the proposals accord with all relevant Development Management and 
Restoration Policies set out in the Plan. 

 
Policy DM1 (Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development) states that 
when considering development proposals, the County Council will take a 
positive approach.  Planning applications that accord with the policies in this 
Local Plan will be approved without delay, unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise. 

 
Policy DM2 (Climate Change) states that proposals for minerals and waste 
management developments should address the following matters where 
applicable: 
 

Page 74



 Minerals and Waste – Locations which reduce distances travelled by 
HCVs in the supply of minerals and the treatment of waste; and 

 Waste – Implement the Waste Hierarchy and reduce waste to landfill. 
 Minerals – encourage ways of working which reduce the overall carbon 

footprint of a mineral site; promote new/enhanced biodiversity 
levels/habitats as part of the restoration proposals to provide carbon 
sinks and/or better connected ecological networks, and; encourage the 
most efficient use of primary minerals. 

 
Policy DM3 (Quality of Life and Amenity) states that planning permission will 
be granted for minerals and waste development provided that it does not 
generate unacceptable adverse impacts to occupants of nearby dwellings or 
other sensitive receptors as a result of a range of different factors/criteria 
(e.g. noise, dust, vibrations, visual intrusion, etc). 

 
Policy DM4 (Historic Environment) states that proposals that have the 
potential to affect heritage assets including features of historic or 
archaeological importance should be assessed and the potential impacts of 
the development upon those assets and their settings taking into account 
and details of any mitigation measures identified.   

 
Planning permission will be granted for minerals and waste development 
where heritage assets, and their settings, are conserved and, where 
possible enhanced and where adverse impacts are identified planning 
permission will only be granted provided that: 
 
 the proposals cannot reasonably be located on an alternative site to 

avoid harm, and: 
 the harmful aspects can be satisfactorily mitigated; or 
 there are exceptional overriding reasons which outweigh the need to 

safeguard the significance of heritage assets which would be harmed. 
 

Policy DM6 (Impact on Landscape and Townscape) – states that planning 
permission will be granted provided that due regard has been given to the 
likely impact of the proposed development on the landscape, including 
landscape character, valued or distinctive landscape features and elements 
and important views.  If necessary additional design, landscaping, planting 
and screening will also be required and where new planting is required it will 
be subject to a minimum 10 year maintenance period. 

 
Development that would result in residual, adverse landscape and visual 
impacts will only be approved if the impacts are acceptable when weighed 
against the benefits of the scheme.  Where there would be significant 
adverse impacts on a valued landscape considered weight will be given to 
the conservation of that landscape. 

 
Policy DM8 (Nationally Designated Sites of Biodiversity and Geological 
Conservation Value) states that planning permission will be granted for 
developments on or affecting such sites (e.g. SSSI's and Ancient Woodland) 
provided it can be demonstrated that the development, either individually or 

Page 75



in combination with other developments, would not conflict with the 
conservation, management and enhancement of the site to have any other 
adverse impact on the site.  Where this is not the case, planning permission 
will be granted provided that: 
 
 the proposal cannot be reasonably located on an alternative site to avoid 

harm; and 
 the benefit of the development would clearly outweigh the impacts that 

the proposal would have on key features of the site; and 
 the harmful aspects can be satisfactorily mitigated or, as a last resort, 

compensated by measures that provide a net gain in 
biodiversity/geodiversity; and 

 in the case of a SSSI, there are no broader impact on the network of 
SSSIs. 

 
Policy DM9 (Local Sites of Nature Conservation Value) states that planning 
permission will be granted for development on or affecting such sites (e.g. 
Local Wildlife Sites, Local Nature Reserves) provided that it can be 
demonstrated that the development would not have any significant adverse 
impacts on the site.  Where this is not the case, planning permission will be 
granted provided that: 
 
 the merits of development outweigh the likely impacts; and 
 any adverse effects are adequately mitigated or, as a last resort 

compensated for, with proposal resulting in a net-gain in biodiversity 
through the creation of new priority habitat in excess of that lost. 

 
Policy DM11 (Soils) states that proposals should protect and, wherever 
possible, enhance soils. 
 
Policy DM12 (Best and Most Versatile Agricultural Land) states that 
proposals that include significant areas of best and most versatile 
agricultural land will only be permitted where it can be demonstrated that no 
reasonable alternative exists and for mineral sites the site will be restored to 
an after-use that safeguards the long-term potential of the best and most 
versatile agricultural land. 

 
Policy DM14 (Transport by Road) states that planning permission will be 
granted for minerals and waste development involving transport by road 
where the highways network is of appropriate standard for use by the traffic 
generated by the development and arrangements for site access would not 
have an unacceptable impact on highway safety, free flow of traffic, 
residential amenity or the environment. 

 
Policy DM15 (Flooding and Flood Risk) states that proposals for minerals 
and waste developments will need to demonstrate that they can be 
developed without increasing the risk of flooding both to the site of the 
proposal and the surrounding area, taking into account all potential sources 
of flooding and increased risks from climate change induced flooding. 
Minerals and waste development proposals should be designed to avoid 

Page 76



and wherever possible reduce the risk of flooding both during and following 
the completion of operations.  Development that is likely to create a material 
increase in the risk of off-site flooding will not be permitted. 

 
Policy DM16 (Water Resources) states that planning permission will be 
granted for minerals and waste developments where they would not have an 
unacceptable impact on surface or ground waters and due regard is given to 
water conservation and efficiency. 

 
Policy DM17 (Cumulative Impacts) states that planning permission will be 
granted for minerals and waste developments where the cumulative impact 
would not result in significant adverse impacts on the environment of an 
area or on the amenity of a local community, either in relation to the 
collective effect of different impacts of an individual proposal, or in relation to 
the effects of a number of developments occurring either concurrently or 
successively. 

 
Policy R1 (Restoration and Aftercare) states the proposals must 
demonstrate that the restoration of mineral workings will be of high quality 
and carried out at the earliest opportunity and accompanied by detailed 
restoration and aftercare schemes. 

 
Policy R2 (After-use) states that proposed after-uses should be designed in 
a way that is not detrimental to the local economy and conserves and where 
possible enhances the landscape character and the natural and historic 
environment of the area in which the site is located.  After-uses should 
enhance and secure a net gain in biodiversity and geological conservation 
interests, conserve soil resources, safeguard best and most versatile 
agricultural land and after-uses including agriculture, nature conservation, 
leisure recreation/sport and woodland.  Where appropriate, the proposed 
restoration should provide improvements for public access to the 
countryside including access links to the surrounding green infrastructure. 
Policy R4 (Restoration of Limestone and Chalk Workings) states that 
proposals for limestone and chalk operations should be sympathetic to the 
surrounding landscape and prioritise the creation of calcareous grassland 
habitat, except best and most versatile agricultural land that would be 
restored back to agricultural land of comparable quality.  Restoration should 
also seek to retain suitable exposures for geological educational use where 
appropriate. 

 
South Kesteven Core Strategy (SKCS) (2010) - forms part of the 
Development Plan and therefore, as confirmed by the NPPF, due weight 
should be given to relevant policies within the Plan according to their degree 
of consistency with the policies of the NPPF.  The following policies are 
considered to be of particular relevance (summarised): 

 
Policy EN1 (Protection and Enhancement of the Character of the District) 
sets out a number of criteria against which all development proposals are 
required to be assessed including (amongst others) statutory, national and 
local designations of landscape features, including natural and historic 

Page 77



assets; local distinctiveness and sense of place; the condition of the 
landscape; biodiversity and ecological networks within the landscape; visual 
intrusion; noise and light pollution, and; impact on controlled waters. 

 
Policy EN2 (Reducing the Risk of Flooding) states that all planning 
applications should be accompanied by a statement of how surface water is 
to be managed and in particular where it is to be discharged.  On-site 
attenuation and infiltration will be required as part of any new development 
wherever possible. 

 
Emerging Local Plan Context 
 
27. Draft Site Locations Document (Preferred Site and Areas) of the 

Lincolnshire Minerals & Waste Local Plan (December 2015) - between  
4 December 2015 and 29 January 2016 consultation on a draft version of 
this document took place.  The document sets out the preferred sites and 
areas for future minerals and waste development to be taken forward as well 
as those not to be taken forward to the next stage of plan preparation.  

 
Policy SL2 (Waste Site Allocations) identifies the sites that are proposed to 
be allocated and safeguarded for Waste uses and states that applications 
for waste development on the sites identified will be permitted where the 
applicant can demonstrate that the proposal is in line with the Development 
Plan.  The proposal site has been promoted by the applicant as a potential 
preferred site for an inert landfill site (Site ref: WS18-SK – Hill Top Farm) but 
has already been discounted as a potential site by the County Council. 

 
Notwithstanding the above, in line with paragraph 216 of the NPPF, given its 
stage of preparation, limited weight may be given to this document in the 
determination of this application. 
 

Results of Consultation and Publicity 
 
28. The comments/responses set out in this section of the report are a summary 

of those received both as a result of the initial round of consultation 
undertaken when the application was first received as well as any 
subsequent comments which may have been received following consultation 
on the Further Information. 

 
 (a) Local County Council Member, Councillor B Adams – has indicated 

that he wishes to make his comments in relation to the proposal when 
the application is considered by the Committee. 

 
 (b) Denton Parish Council – responded (July 2015 and May 2016) stating 

that they object to the proposals on the following grounds 
(summarised): 

 
 There is no need for limestone as the County already estimates a 

surplus of 23.87 million tonnes of aggregate by 2031.  The 
proposed extraction of 250,000 tonnes per annum from this site 

Page 78



would equate to a quarter of the County's annual requirement of 1.1 
million tonnes per annum. 
 

 Inadequate evidence has been presented to demonstrate that 25% 
of the proposed reserves are actually Type 1 quality as only one 
sample is said to have been tested from the site.  More evidence 
should be obtained before this can be substantiated. 
 

 Concerns expressed about potential impacts on hydrogeology, in 
particular as groundwaters are believed to flow both north and south 
within the aquifer as they feed lakes within Denton Manor and also 
Denton Reservoir which feeds the Grantham Canal.  The impact of 
the proposed operations and removal of the limestone therefore 
needs further assessment to ensure there is no risk. 
 

 Planning permission for the importation and landfilling of inert waste 
at South Witham has been refused by the County Council on the 
basis of there being a surplus of inert landfill capacity within the 
County.  Government policy is to recycle construction waste on site 
and the applicant claims to recycle around 85% of this type of waste 
on site.  If this is the case then the inert wastes proposed to be 
landfilled within this site are likely to be clay or waste of a similar 
nature and could damage the aquifer and affect drainage of the 
restored farmland. 

 
 Proposal does not meet the criteria for sustainable development 

and would have an adverse impact on the environment including 
the loss of high grade farmland, risk of dust (which has not be 
assessed properly), increased traffic and also impacts on the 
adjoining SSSI and roadside verges which would be affected by the 
proposed highway improvements. 
 

 Although the applicant has confirmed that their own vehicle fleet 
would utilise technology to ensure vehicles follow the proposed 
routeing restrictions, not all quarry traffic would be owned by the 
applicant and so concerns remain about how this would be policed 
and enforced in the event these are breached. 
 

 Question the claim that 30 jobs would be created by the proposal as 
it is unlikely that these would be new jobs or locally recruited staff. 

 
In their initial response (received July 2015) it is stated that in the event 
that the County Council are minded to grant planning permission, the 
Parish Council has recommended that restrictions be imposed by way 
of conditions and/or a S106 Planning Obligation for the following: 
 
 Prevents operations taking place at weekends and public holidays 

and the hours of operation should only be during daytime hours 
(maximum of 10 hours per day). 

 The hours of operation for HGV traffic should be restricted. 

Page 79



 There should be 40mph speed limit on Gorse Lane from the site 
toward the A607 junction. 

 Site access should be designed so that all traffic is forced to travel 
west towards the A607 when leaving the site and CCTV cameras 
should be installed to monitor this. 

 Road improvements to Gorse Lane as well as reactive speed 
reminder signs should be installed on the approaches to the 
junction of the A607 and Main Street and Stony Track which are 
within Denton. 

 
 (c) Hungerton cum Wyville Parish Meeting – has made the following 

observations: 
 

 There is no requirement for landfill sites within Lincolnshire.  An 
existing site (South Witham Quarry) has only recently had planning 
permission refused on the grounds of lack of need. 
 

 There is no requirement for limestone aggregate within a 20 mile 
radius of the site.  Also the applicant states that the reserves are of 
superior quality although limited samples have been taken and so 
this should be properly assessed to determine whether or not this is 
the case. 
 

 Although some of the proposal site lies within the historic planning 
permission area around 30% does not. 
 

 The land is used for farming and is in-keeping with the rest of the 
surrounding environment whereas a quarry is not. 
 

 Potential impacts on the underlying groundwater and aquifer which 
could affect natural springs in the area.  This needs to be properly 
investigated. 
 

 Adverse impact on local businesses including nearby livery and 
stables.  The development would have a detrimental effect on the 
schooling and safety of riders especially due to noise and traffic. 
 

 Potential dust impacts need to be properly assessed. 
 
 (d) Harlaxaton Parish Council – has responded (received June 2015 and 

June 2016) stating that they strongly object to the proposals as a 
significant number of villagers and Parish Councillors have concerns 
about the development.  The grounds of objection are as summarised 
as follows: 

 
 Noise and dust impacts: concerns about how dust and noise would 

be managed and it is argued that no specifics have been given 
regarding what acceptable limits for noise and dust would be or how 

Page 80



these would be managed if limits were exceeded.  Noise levels 
have also not been monitored in Harlaxton. 
 

 Increased HGV traffic: concerns about increased traffic and safety 
risks along the A607 particularly through Harlaxton and the major 
junction with the Gregory Public House, and where controversially, 
the speed limit is already too high at 50mph.  Although the applicant 
has offered a HGV routeing agreement and confirmed that their own 
vehicle fleet would utilise technology to ensure vehicles follow the 
proposed routeing restrictions, not all quarry traffic would be owned 
by the applicant and so concerns remain about how this would be 
policed and enforced in the event these are breached. 
 

 No economic case has been made for mining limestone or creating 
an additional inert landfill site within the County for which the 
recently adopted Minerals and Waste Local Plan confirms that there 
is no identified need for. 
 

 The application plays down the impacts of the development on 
Belvoir Castle as the quarrying operations would alter the shape 
and appearance of the landscape and, unlike agricultural vehicles 
which are present occasionally, quarry plant and equipment 
(including lights) would be constantly visible. 
 

 Concerns expressed regarding the loss of important wildlife habitat, 
valuable farmland and risk of destabilisation of the water table in 
particular upon the Hungerton Spring.  The development would also 
impact upon the Willowbed Plantation which has recently been 
confirmed as a scheduled Ancient Woodland and which has 
complex surface and groundwater features.  These have not been 
monitored and the NPPF states that Ancient Woodlands should be 
protected. 

 
In the initial response received it was stated that in the event that 
planning permission is granted despite the Parish Council's concerns it 
is requested that conditions be imposed to secure the following: 
 
 Traffic calming measures – inc. along the A607 such as pedestrian 

islands close to the Gregory Public House, lowering of speed limits 
through Harlaxton from 50mph to 30mph, weight restriction imposed 
on Swinehill/High Street to prevent this being used as an alternative 
route for quarry traffic. 
 

 Quarry traffic management – inc. no left turn out of the site including 
appropriate access design so as to deter this as well as installation 
of CCTV cameras to ensure routeing is enforced. 

 
 (e) Natural England (NE) – initially responded (received July 2015) 

commenting that whilst clarification would be required in terms of the 
existing and restored soil volumes and handling procedures, NE were 

Page 81



generally satisfied that the existing best and most versatile agricultural 
land should be capable of being restored back to a roughly equivalent 
quality.  Conditions could be imposed requiring the applicant to 
implement an Annual Soils Management Audit (to confirm how soils 
would be stripped, handled, stored) and to secure further details of the 
aftercare proposals and procedures to ensure the site is managed 
appropriately post-restoration to ensure a beneficial agricultural after-
use. 

 
  Following the submission of the Further Information a subsequent 

response was provided (received June 2016) which focuses primarily 
on the impacts of the development on the Drift SSSI and roadside 
verges as a consequence of the proposed road widening works along 
Gorse Lane.  In this response, NE acknowledge that the Further 
Information submitted confirms that the proposed road widening works 
would result in the direct loss of grassland habitats including approx. 
32m2 of land which falls within the SSSI boundaries.  NE acknowledges 
that the provision of other traffic management measures (e.g. traffic 
signals, priority junctions) in the area where the SSSI and Gorse Lane 
meet would not be practical or appropriate and therefore the proposed 
road widening works are the only practical option. 

 
  Although the loss of the grassland habitats is this location is therefore 

recognised the survey information provided as part of the Further 
Information demonstrates that the land lost is highly degraded as a 
consequence of the existing use of the carriageway by vehicles, lack of 
existing management and unauthorised human interference.  NE 
consider that the loss of the existing degraded grassland habitat could 
however be compensated for through the creation of calcareous and 
species-rich grassland elsewhere within the application site.  Measures 
could also be taken to prevent current and future damage to the SSSI 
through the installation of kerbs which would not only discourage 
vehicles overrunning the roadside edges but could also secure 
improved drainage which would reduce standing waters and pollution 
to the SSSI from pollutants such as road salt and oils.  Subject to the 
imposition of conditions to secure these works, NE has confirmed that 
despite the direct impacts upon the Drift SSSI they have no objection to 
the proposed road widening proposals. 

 
 (f) Lincolnshire Wildlife Trust (LWT) – initially responded (received August 

2015) commenting that they welcomed the measures that have been 
proposed by the applicant to safeguard and protect the adjoining Drift 
SSSI (e.g. stand-off/buffer strip, screening bund and implementation of 
dust management scheme) as well as the proposals to create new 
areas of calcareous grassland and to plant species rich hedgerows as 
part of the restoration proposals.  The LWT also welcomed the 
proposed management of the off-site Nature Conservation 
Management Areas (e.g. Willowbed Plantation and Wealdmore Brook) 
and were also satisfied with the survey information and mitigation 

Page 82



measures proposed as part of the development to protect and minimise 
any impacts upon protected species. 

 
  However, LWT did initially express concerns regarding the potential 

impact of the proposed road widening works along Gorse Lane upon 
both the Drift SSSI and adjoining roadside verges and consequently 
requested that further information be provided to assess and clarify the 
extent of these works.  Concerns were also expressed regarding the 
potential impacts upon hydrology of the wider area and therefore 
requested that further assessments and monitoring be carried out. 

 
  A subsequent response was provided (received June 2016) following 

the submission of the Further Information.  LWT's latest response 
makes no further comments with regard the survey information and 
details regarding the proposed road widening works and impacts upon 
the Drift SSSI and roadside verges.  However, LWT do maintain their 
concerns regarding potential impacts upon the wider 
hydrogeology/hydrology of the area and are concerned that there is the 
potential for indirect effects upon the adjoining Willowbed Plantation 
which has recently been designated as Ancient Woodland.  Although 
LWT note that the Environment Agency agrees with the conclusions of 
the ES that it is believed that the Willowbed Plantation is not a 
groundwater dependant feature, LWT are aware of contrary views 
expressed by other parties (namely Canal & Rivers Trust and GOLAG) 
and therefore question the sufficiency of the data and assessments 
undertaken. 

 
  Given the irreplaceable nature of Ancient Woodland it is therefore 

stated that if planning permission is to be granted then the Minerals 
Planning Authority must be satisfied that sufficient information has 
been provided to enable an informed decision to be made.  
Additionally, should planning permission be granted it is recommended 
that water level monitoring within the woodland be secured which 
would allow changes in the hydrology of the woodland to be detected 
and mitigation measures implemented to ensure that the woodland is 
not adversely affected. 

 
(g) Woodland Trust – were consulted following the designation of the 

Willowbed Plantation as Ancient Woodland in May 2016.  The 
Woodland Trust has commented that on technical matters such as 
hydrology the Trust defers to the Environment Agency as they are the 
statutory body with expertise in this area.  Subject to the Environment 
Agency not raising any objections the Trust has no objections to the 
proposals subject to the development being carried out in accordance 
with the details as contained within the application in particular the 
provision of the stand-off distances between the proposed working 
areas of the quarry and the adjacent Willowbed Plantation. 

 
(h) Highways England – originally responded (received June 2015) 

confirming that they have no objection to the proposals and confirmed 

Page 83



that they had no further comments in a subsequent response (received 
June 2016). 

 
(i) Historic England (HE) – initially responded (received June 2015) noting 

that whilst the assessments contained within the ES identified and 
assessed the impact of the development on the setting of designated 
assets around the site (including Belvoir Castle), those assessments 
did not illustrate the potential views of the proposal site that may be 
obtained from Belvoir Castle itself and which could therefore effect its 
setting.  HE advised that sufficient information should be submitted to 
demonstrate and corroborate the statement and assessments of 
impacts arising from the proposed development and in response to this 
the applicant subsequently submitted such information as part of the 
Further Information. 

 
A subsequent response (received June 2016) was received in 
response to the Further Information which welcomed the submission of 
the supplementary assessment undertaken which considered the 
potential impacts of the development upon views from Belvoir Castle. 
HE has not stated whether they object or not to the proposal but have 
advised that in line with the advice in the NPPF, the impact of the 
proposed development on Belvoir Castle and its setting should be 
given great weight and that where development would lead to harm to 
designated heritage assets then the public benefits of the proposal 
should be assessed against the level of harm caused.  It is added that 
even if that harm is less than substantial it does not necessarily mean 
that it is automatically acceptable. 
 
Finally, it is recommended that further guidance and advice be 
obtained from the County Council's own specialist conservation and 
archaeological advisors prior to determining the application. 
 

 (j) Historic Environment (Lincolnshire County Council) – comments have 
been made in respect of the impacts on archaeological interests and 
upon the setting of designated heritage assets and the historic 
landscape. 

   
  Archaeological issues: The archaeological evaluation which forms part 

of the EIA confirms that a series of archaeological features exist across 
the site mainly relating to the Iron Age and Roman period but with 
some evidence of earlier prehistoric usage.  The level of significance is 
largely local although the density of features in the central area 
suggests that it might be one of the so‐called 'ladder settlements' which 
are a particular type of Iron Age settlement only found in the Midlands 
and this would give a more regional significance.  However, it is stated 
that the significance of these means that the impact of destruction of 
these remains could be mitigated by recording archaeological remains 
prior to extraction works and therefore it is recommended that should 
consent be granted there should be a condition which requires an 
archaeological scheme of works to be undertaken. 

Page 84



  Setting of designated heritage assets and the historic landscape: It is 
stated that whilst there are no designated assets within the proposed 
site there are a number nearby including Hill Top Farm (Grade II 
Listed) and its associated barns (also Grade II Listed) which are 
situated immediately adjacent to the proposed site.  The current setting 
of these buildings is agricultural land which contributes to their 
significance as farmhouse buildings and it is considered that there 
would be a visible impact upon the setting of these buildings, as well as 
impacts associated with dust and noise, whatever mitigation measures 
are implemented given the close proximity of these properties. 
Consequently, there would inevitably be an impact on the rural setting 
of the farmhouse and its associated buildings. 

 
  Additionally, Hungerton Hall is 400m from the southern boundary of the 

site and although there is no impact on visibility, once again it is 
considered that there would be impacts from noise and dust despite the 
conclusions in the EIA that this impact would be neutral.  The historic 
designed parkland associated with Hungerton Hall is also immediately 
adjacent to the whole of the southern boundary of the proposal site and 
there would be an adverse impact upon this as a result of the proposals 
as the hedgerows which run along Gorse Lane would only form a 
partial barrier in summer when the leaves are on the trees.  Part of the 
designed parkland also comprises of former ponds which were fed from 
a stream which rose somewhere west of the hall and towards the 
proposed site, in older maps the stream and ponds are shown, but 
currently these are intermittent.  This reduction in water level may have 
been due to the historical working of a small quarry in the south east 
corner of the proposed site (i.e. Jimmy Green's Wood) which may have 
cut into the underlying water table.  This possibility should be 
investigated as a further reduction in water levels could impact even 
further on these streams and ponds.  Similar concerns are raised in 
relation to the watercourses and ponds on Denton Manor estate which 
is not far from the northern boundary of the proposal site and which are 
fed by a stream which runs along the northern boundary of the 
proposed site.  If there was a possibility of extraction having an adverse 
impact on this stream, then this too would cause an adverse impact on 
the ponds in the designed historic parkland of Denton Manor. 

 
  Finally, it is stated that whilst historically there has been small scale 

extraction of stone across the parishes in this area, it has been very 
small scale and has not adversely affected the landscape which is 
described in the South Kesteven Landscape Character Assessment as 
relatively unspoilt undulating agricultural landscape.  It is considered 
that the proposed operations would inevitably adversely affect this 
landscape for some years and would be contrary to South Kesteven 
Core Strategy Policy EN1 which states that 'Development must be 
appropriate to the character and significant natural, historic and cultural 
attributes and features of the landscape within which it is situated.  The 
Historic Environment Officer notes that whilst the LVIA contained within 
the ES concludes that there would be no conflict with this policy they 

Page 85



disagree and consider that there clearly would be an impact during the 
operations and whatever restoration is proposed it cannot 'put back' 
historic detail and therefore inevitably there would be impacts for which 
it would be difficult to achieve full mitigation.  The adverse impacts of 
this proposal however have to be balanced against potential public 
benefit, and therefore taken into account when considering this 
application. 

 
(k) Environment Agency (EA) – initially responded (received June 2105) 

confirming that they had reviewed the ES and in particular the 
Hydrogeological Impact Assessment and agreed with the conclusions 
which indicated that the limestone at the site is largely unsaturated and 
does not provide a significant groundwater resource to any users or 
surface features.  As a result it was concluded that the mineral 
extraction operations would not appear to require any dewatering and 
there would be little effect on groundwater levels.  Consequently, no 
objections were raised to the proposals. 

 
 A subsequent response (received May 2016) was received in response 

to the Further Information and this response confirms that having 
considered the additional borehole monitoring records and 
hydrogeological review/assessment submitted as part of that response, 
the EA are still in general agreement with the findings of the ES and 
that the additional borehole and groundwater monitoring undertaken 
have helped to refine the conceptual understanding of the site.  The EA 
has however made a number of comments about certain elements of 
the conclusions and interpretations made within the Further Information 
the most significant of which confirms that whilst the EA agree that the 
assessments undertaken continue to largely show that the limestone is 
largely unsaturated, they do indicate that groundwaters would be 
encountered within the limestone deposit where workings are proposed 
close to the southern boundary of the site.  As a result, although the EA 
have not raised an objection to this it is commented that the working 
scheme for the site may need to be revised to take into account periods 
when groundwaters could be encountered which is more likely to occur 
during the winter months. 

 
 In respect of potential impacts on the Hungerton Spring, the EA note 

that there are on-going discussions between the applicant and the 
Hungerton Hall Estate regarding the potential establishment of a flow 
monitoring, surface water quality and off-site monitoring borehole 
although these are a private matter.  In this regard the EA have 
indicated that they are generally satisfied with the working scheme, 
restoration and drainage proposals and therefore subject to the 
implementation of the mitigation and water management procedures 
proposed within the application, overall maintain no objections to the 
proposals. 

  
(l) Environmental Health Officer (South Kesteven District Council) – notes 

that no mineral processing would take place within 500m of any 

Page 86



residential dwelling and the proposed soil bunds should alleviate noise 
and to a lesser degree any dust from the site.  It is stated that dust 
monitoring must be undertaken however and a planning condition is 
recommended to secure this.  Finally, it is noted that on-site activities 
would also require and therefore be controlled by an Environmental 
Permit which would address potential air quality, land, water and noise 
pollution issues. 

 
(m) Highways & Lead Local Flood Authority (Lincolnshire County Council) – 

in respect of highways matters, no objections are raised but it is 
recommended that should planning permission be granted then the 
routeing agreement should be secured by way of unilateral undertaking 
(secured as part of a S106 Planning Obligation).  It is also 
recommended that the proposed widening proposals along Gorse Lane 
be secured by way of a Section 278 Highways Agreement. 

 
 In their capacity as Lead Local Flood Authority, no objections are 

raised provided that the development is implemented in accordance 
with the details contained within the application and that discharges are 
limited to greenfield run-off rate with attenuation provided as proposed.  
It is commented that the proposal site is across a number of 
catchments and it is therefore essential that during the extraction phase 
the discharge to each catchment area is not above the rate for that 
individual catchment area and that when the restoration so complete 
the catchments should be restored. 

 
(n) Upper Witham Internal Drainage Board – responded (June 2015 and 

May 2016) confirming that their comments form part of the overall 
response provided by the Highways & Lead Local Flood Authority (see 
above). 

 
(o) Ramblers Groups/Association(s) – separate responses were received 

from the following different branches/areas. 
 

 Grantham – object due to the proposals close proximity to the 
Viking Way which is an internationally recognised long distance 
route and potential dangers to walkers and users of this route from 
the mining activities if explosives are permitted and increased traffic 
using Gorse Lane which would be a danger to walkers wishing to 
access footpaths in the area. 
 

 Nottinghamshire – object to the proposal due to its close proximity 
to the Viking Way which is an internationally recognised long 
distance route running alongside the western boundary of proposed 
quarry.  People come to the area to walk the Viking Way and to 
enjoy the views and peace and tranquillity of the countryside and 
this proposal would impact upon that enjoyment. 
 

 Vale of Belvoir – also object to the proposal due to its close 
proximity to the Viking Way which is an internationally recognised 

Page 87



long distance route running alongside the western boundary of 
proposed quarry.  Objections are also made on the grounds of the 
loss of farmland, mature hedgerows, existing habitats as well as 
disturbance to brown hares and farmland bird species (e.g. Skylark, 
Lapwing, Yellowhammer, etc).  It is also stated that there would be 
increased health and safety risks as a result of dust and traffic both 
along Gorse Lane and the A607 and that there is no need for more 
limestone within the County or landfill sites to justify this proposal.  
The development would also destroy an important limestone aquifer 
and pose a risk to the quantity and quality of regional water supplies 
and have a significant adverse impact on the character of the area 
and visual setting for walkers using the Viking Way and surrounding 
area. 

 
Overall the development is therefore not considered to meet the criteria 
for sustainable development as defined within the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 

 
No further comments/responses have been received. 

 
(p) Canal & River Trust – responded (July 2015 and May 2016) and object 

to the application as they have concerns that the quarrying operations 
would affect the natural spring systems which lie to the north of the site 
and which feed Foston Beck and Denton Reservoir which itself 
ultimately feeds into the Grantham Canal.  Grantham Canal is no 
longer navigable along its full length but it is undergoing restoration and 
the continued supply of water is therefore vital to its success. 

 
 The Canal & River Trust note the findings of the hydrogeological 

assessments that have been undertaken as part of the ES but do not 
believe that these provide sufficient evidence to confidently 
demonstrate that the springs to the north of the site are not also feed 
and recharged via groundwaters within the limestone deposit.  
Therefore the Trust considers that the risk of adverse impacts on the 
water supply to the Denton Reservoir and Grantham Canal have not 
been properly quantified or assessed.  The proposed development is 
therefore not considered to accord with Policy DM16 of the CSDMP 
which states that planning permission for minerals and waste 
development will not be granted where they would have an adverse 
impact on surface and groundwaters. 

 
The following bodies/persons were also consulted both when the application 
was originally submitted and on the Further Information but no 
comments/response had been received by the time this report was 
prepared. 

 
Great Ponton Parish Council  
Little Ponton & Stroxton Parish Council 
Lincolnshire Fieldpaths Association. 

 

Page 88



29. The application has been publicised by notices posted at various locations 
around the site and in the local press (Grantham Journal on 19 June 2015 & 
again on 20 May 2016 following the submission of the 'Further Information').  
Letters of notification were also sent to the nearest neighbouring residents to 
the site. 

 
A local group called 'Gorse Lane Quarry Action Group' (GOLAG) has been 
formed and have made substantial representations in respect of the 
proposal including the submission of specially commissioned reports by 
planning and hydrogeology consultants which critique and expand upon the 
objections raised by GLOAG as a whole. 

 
A petition with 518 signatories has also been received which objects to the 
proposals on the grounds that it is considered that the development would 
lead to the loss of farm land on Gorse Lane and cause consequent damage 
to wildlife and the community. 

 
A total of 165 individual representations objecting to the proposals have also 
been received which include letters/emails from local residents and the 
surrounding communities, adjoining landowners as well as representatives 
and pupils of nearby schools and colleges.  Following the submission of the 
Further Information a further 72 letters/emails were received from previous 
representatives which reiterate their original objections and/or provide 
further comments (resulting in a total of 237 letters/emails overall).  

 
A summary of the issues/objections raised within the individual 
representations and those made by GOLAG are set out below: 
 
 Objections on the grounds that there is no justified or proven need for 

limestone aggregate within the County as there is a substantial landbank 
of existing reserves available to meet demand during the current Plan 
period.  Although the applicant argues that the site would produce Type 
1 aggregate this is questioned and even if this were the case then the 
proportion and volumes cited as being recoverable would not justify a 
quarry which could operate for 30 years or more. 
 

 Objections on the grounds that there is no need to create new inert 
landfill capacity within the County.  The recently adopted Core Strategy 
of the Minerals and Waste Local Plan confirms this and so to grant 
planning permission would be in conflict with this and the Government's 
policy which is seeking to promote recycling rather than disposal of 
wastes to landfill. 
 

 Objections on the grounds that the development would result in the loss 
of over 100 hectares of high quality agricultural land which should be 
protected.  The loss of the land would be contrary to both national and 
local planning policy and its restoration would be to a much lower quality. 
 

 Objections on the grounds that the development would have a significant 
visual impact and have an adverse effect upon the character and tranquil 

Page 89



nature of the countryside which is frequently used by walkers, cyclist and 
horse riders, etc. 
 

 Objections on the grounds of the potential for increased dust arising from 
both the extraction and landfilling operations and that given the prevailing 
wind direction could have an adverse amenity and health impact (e.g. 
increase incidences of asthma) upon local residents especially those 
living within Harlaxton. 
 

 Objections on the ground of increased HGV traffic in particular along the 
A607 and potential for them to pass through local villages.  Concerns 
expressed that the number, size and frequency of such vehicles would 
increase the risk of accidents and could jeopardise the safety of other 
road users (e.g. pedestrians, walkers as well as drivers) which use the 
area.  The extra traffic would also cause damage to the road network 
(especially Gorse Lane) which is stated as already being in a poor 
condition and unsuitable for such heavy traffic. 
 

 Objections on the grounds that the development would have a significant 
detrimental impact upon the adjoining Kings Luds Entrenchment and 
Drift SSSI both in terms of noise and dust but also potentially due to 
changes in hydrology. 
 

 Objections on the grounds that the development would impact upon 
surface and underlying groundwater flows and in particular that the 
quarrying operations could negatively impact and affect supplies to 
existing natural springs and watercourses including Hungerton Spring, 
Denton Reservoir and Grantham Canal). 
 

 Objections on the grounds that the development would have an adverse 
impact on the recently designated Willowbed Plantation Ancient 
Woodland.  This area should be protected and could suffer impacts as a 
result of changed in hydrology and from dust and pollution as it is 
immediately adjacent to the application site. 
 

 Objections on the grounds of the loss of hedgerows, trees and loss of 
habitats which support local wildlife and protected species including 
birds, mammals, badgers and great crested newts. 
 

 Objections on the grounds of increased noise arising from both HGV 
traffic but also the quarrying operations.  The increased noise would 
have an adverse impact upon the enjoyment of the countryside and 
surrounding area. 
 

 Objections on the grounds of potential light pollution from the processing 
plant and quarrying operations and consequential industrialisation of the 
countryside. 
 

 Objections/comments that the application for this proposal should be 
judged fairly and equitably based on its merits and not against the threat 

Page 90



that the Denton ironstone consent and the environmental impacts of that 
development could potentially have. 
 

 Objections on the grounds that the quarry would be visible from Belvoir 
Castle which is a tourist attraction and would damage the current 
unspoilt views that can be gained from this location. 
 

 Comments that the proposed 31 jobs created by this development would 
not be local and therefore of no benefit to the local community or 
economy. 

 
One letter of support has been received on the grounds that the 
development would provide jobs and because limestone is used for the 
construction industry and could be used to help build more homes, hospitals 
and roads. 

 
County and District Council’s Observations/Recommendations (inc. adjoining 
Authorities) 
 
30. South Kesteven District Council – initially responded (received July 2015) 

and made the following comments in relation to the proposal: 
 

a) Landscape & Visual Impact – disagrees with the Landscape & Visual 
Impact Assessement which concludes that there is no conflict with the 
South Kesteven Core Strategy Policy EN1.  The proposal lies within the 
Kesteven Uplands which is described as being a relatively unspoilt 
undulating agriculutral landscape and there will inevitably be an 
adverse landscape and visual impacts through the nature of the 
operations which can never be fully mitigated through landscaping.  
The proposal therefore conflicts with Policy EN1 and this should be 
given due weight in the planning balance and planning permission 
should only be granted if the County Council is satisifed that the 
benefits outweigh the adverse impacts. 

 
b) Impacts on Listed Buildings – the ES understates the potential impact 

of the development on the group of Grade II Listed Buildings which are 
located towards the north-western corner of the site.  Whilst some 
landscaping, including woodland planting and bunding, is proposed 
there would be some inevitable adverse impact (less than substantial 
harm) on the relatively unspoilt setting of these heritage assets.  The 
proposal therefore again conflicts with Policy EN1 in this regard and so 
should be should be given due weight in the planning balance and 
planning permission should only be granted if the County Council is 
satisifed that the benefits outweigh the adverse impacts. 

 
c) In the event that the County Council be minded to approve the 

proposals it is recommended that the following first be considered: 
 

Page 91



 That the northern boundary of the site be moved back to create a 
more acceptable seperation distance and to correspond with the 
boundary of the extant historic permission. 
 

 That all removed topsoil should be stored and then replaced when 
quarrying is completed. 
 

 That the County Council are satisifed that the extant historic 
permissions are capable of being implemented and therefore a 
genuine fallback position. 
 

 That traffic and highway impacts be fully assessed especially in 
connection with the bridge on Gorse Lane which crosses the A1 as 
well as the wider traffic within Grantham and the surrounding area. 
 

 It is recommended that a planning condition be imposed requiring 
dust montioring be undertaken (as per the advice of the EHO). 

 
A subsequent response was received (received August 2015) which 
highlighted local concerns that the Council had received directly from 
the local community in respect of the potential impacts of the 
development of the Drift SSSI, impacts on water quality and quantity, 
loss of best and most versatile agricultural land, impacts on local 
amenity through dust and noise, HGV traffic and concerns over how 
this could potentially be controlled.  It was requested that these issues 
should be taken into account and given due weight in the determination 
of the application. 
 
Finally, in response to the Further Information a final response 
(received August 2016) was received which, whilst indicating that they 
have 'no objections to raise', confrims that the Council's previous 
comments made in ealier representations should continue to be taken 
into consideration. 
 

Leicestershire County Council (acting as adjoining County Planning 
Authority) – initially responded (June 2015) confirming that land immediately 
to the west of the application site also has a dormant planning permission 
for ironstone working but that this application does not include land within 
that permission area.  The phasing proposals for the quarry would mean that 
the workings would not be close to the Leicestershire boundary until towards 
the end of the sites life and that boundary hedgerows and trees are to be 
protected and enhanced as part of the development.  Consequently, subject 
to appropriate environmental controls being imposed by conditions they 
have no objection to the proposals. 

 
A further response was received (June 2016) which confirmed that they 
have no further comments to make other than that the Council's landscape 
architect has considered the Further Information submitted and concluded 
that the supplementary LVIA which considers the potential impacts upon 
Belvoir Castle is acceptable and that the direction of working within Phase 

Page 92



B, so that operations move from a south-east to north-west direction, would 
ensure that the development would not have a significant landscape and 
visual impact for views from the Leicestershire boundary. 

 
Leicestershire County Council (acting as adjoining Highways Authority) – 
responded (June 2015) acknowledging that concerns about increased HGV 
traffic on Gorse Lane/Three Queens Road, the A607 and potentially 
movements on weight restricted routes within the Vale of Belvoir had been 
raised by the Gorse Lane Action Group (GOLAG).  Whilst these concerns 
are noted, and it is accepted that the development would increase HGV 
movements, it was commented that these are unlikely to lead to or create 
severe harm which would need to be demonstrated if refusal of the 
application was to be justified on these grounds.  The A607 is a designated 
HGV route and so it could not be argued that this road is unsuitable to cater 
for HGV traffic.  With regard to concerns about increased HGV movements 
on roads within the Vale Of Belvoir, given these roads already have a weight 
limit it would not be possible to seek to resist this proposal on that basis.  
Whilst HGV's would be able to deliver to sites within any weight restricted 
zone this would be the case whether the mineral extraction took place at this 
proposal site or any other site within the Country. 

 
Consequently, no objections are raised to the application subject to the 
applicant entering into a Unilateral Undertaking (secured via a S106 
Planning Obligation) in order to secure the routeing of all HGV traffic to and 
from the site via Gorse Lane/Three Queens Road and via the A607 to the 
west of the site (as proposed by the applicant) and that the proposed road 
improvements to Gorse Lane/Three Queens Road and the junction with the 
A607 should also be secured and carried out before the development 
commences.  These works would need to be secured via S278 Agreement 
under the Highways Act 1980. 

 
No further comments/response had been received. 

 
Croxton Kerrial & Branston Parish Council – as the proposed quarry is not 
within their County and is upwind of the nearest habitation in the Parish, 
they have not commented on sustainability issues or the immediate 
environmental impacts arising from the proposed quarrying operation.  
However, the Parish Council objects to the proposal on the grounds of 
highway and public safety as traffic arising from this proposal would use the 
A607 which passes through the centre of the main village.   

 
If planning permission was to be granted then the Parish Council argues that 
all traffic should remain in Lincolnshire and so should be directed towards 
Grantham with improvements being made along Gorse Lane to enable this.  
Alternatively, if traffic is not restricted solely to Lincolnshire then the full 
section of Gorse Lane between the site and its junction with the A607 must 
be upgraded to allow two way HGV traffic.  It is also requested that quarry 
traffic be prohibited from travelling along routes off the A607 within Croxton 
Kerrial (like is identified by the applicant within Denton and Harlaxton) and 
that all traffic movements be scheduled so as to avoid school times.  Finally, 

Page 93



it is also requested that should permission be granted then improved 
crossing points (inc. a zebra crossing) should be provided on Main Street 
within Croxton Kerrial and that the Parish Council be invited to attend any 
Site Liaison Group/Committee. 

 
Melton Borough Council – was originally consulted on 4 June 2015 and 
again following the submission of the Further Information on 12 May 2016 
but no response had been received by the time this report was prepared. 

 
Conclusions 
 
30. This is a very complex proposal which raises a number of significant issues 

which need to be carefully considered.  The main key issues are considered 
to be: 

 
 the need and justification for the new mineral reserves and proposed 

landfilling operations; 
 an assessment of the main impacts associated with the current 

proposals; and 
 whether the current proposals (including the applicants offer to rescind 

their interest in those parts of the wider Denton ironstone consent under 
their control) offer an environmental benefit which outweigh the impacts 
associated with this proposal such that the development can be 
supported. 

 
Need for limestone 
 
31. The recently adopted Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan: Core 

Strategy & Development Management Policies (CSDMP) (Table 3) confirms 
that there is more than sufficient limestone reserves available to meet future 
requirements with a surplus of around 29.09 million tonnes being cited as 
available at the end of the Plan period (i.e. 2031).  Given the size of the 
limestone reserves there is therefore no quantitative need to release 
additional reserves at this time, however, the permitted reserve figure does 
exclude reserves that could be added to the landbank through the 
reactivation of dormant sites.  This application includes land covered by the 
Denton ironstone consent (i.e. a dormant permission) and therefore could 
potentially be worked if an Initial Review of the extant permission was to be 
undertaken.  If such an application were to be submitted the MPA would not 
be able to refuse that application on the grounds of the lack of need for 
those reserves, however, this application does also include land that lies 
outside the boundaries of the Denton ironstone consent area.  As a result, 
this application does seek to release new, unconsented limestone reserves 
and therefore a case for the need and/or justification to allow the release of 
those reserves does need to be given consideration in terms of their 
compliance with the aims, objectives and policies of the current 
Development Plan. 

 
32. Although there is no quantitative need to release additional reserves at this 

time, Policy M5 of the CSDMP does allow for proposals for new or 

Page 94



extensions to existing limestone extraction sites to be supported where it is 
demonstrated that they meet a proven need that cannot be met by existing 
sites/sources and comply with all other policies in the Development Plan.  In 
terms of demonstrating a proven need the CSDMP indicates that examples 
of when 'exceptional circumstances' may exist to support the release of new 
reserves could include where the mineral deposit has special characteristics 
not found in other deposits or even where there may benefits in allowing a 
'swap' whereby an existing permission for a site causing environmental 
damage would be revoked in exchange for a new site with minimal 
environmental damage.  These two scenarios are applicable in this case as 
the applicant states that limestone deposit within the site can produce a 
higher grade limestone aggregate (i.e. non-frost susceptible Type 1) not 
produced elsewhere by other quarries in Lincolnshire and that their offer to 
rescind existing interests and rights to work land subject of the Denton 
ironstone consent would, in effect, be a swap and that the proposals as a 
whole offer wider environmental benefits than the potential reactivation of 
that extant planning permission. 

  
33. In terms of the quality of the limestone reserves, the applicant submits that 

around 1,900,000 tonnes of the total 5,900,000 tonnes of limestone 
proposed to be extracted would be of the higher grade Type 1 limestone 
aggregate specification.  Historically this quality of limestone aggregate has 
not been produced from other quarries within the County working the same 
Lincolnshire Limestone deposit due to the relatively low strength and poor 
resistance that those aggregates possess.  As a result, typically Type 1 
materials have had to be imported from sources outside the County or can 
potentially also be sourced from recycled aggregates.  The applicant 
therefore argues that the special characteristics of a proportion of the 
reserves available within this site present an 'exceptional circumstance' 
which should support the release of these additional new reserves. 

 
34. The applicant's assertion that the site would be capable of producing the 

volumes of the Type 1 limestone cited are based largely on the results of a 
very limited sampling size and given the known variation and poor quality of 
the limestone usually found within the same deposit worked elsewhere it is 
debatable how confident and reliable these estimated volumes are.  
Notwithstanding this, a British Geological Survey (BGS) report 
commissioned by Officers during the consideration of this application does 
indicate that there is a possibility that the limestone deposit within the 
proposal site could be capable of producing the Type 1 aggregate although 
the BGS report does not give an indication as to what proportion of the total 
reserves within the site would be likely to consist of this higher grade 
product and neither does it rule out the fact that such materials could not 
also be produced from other quarries working the same limestone deposit 
elsewhere.  In fact the potential reason why other quarries have not 
historically produced the Type 1 product is not necessarily because it is not 
present but is likely to be due to the additional processing requirements and 
costs required to produce it and given the relatively low volumes present 
within the deposit this may not historically have been deemed viable by 
other operators.  Nevertheless even if it is accepted that the volumes cited 

Page 95



by the applicant are likely, then the higher grade Type 1 aggregate would 
still only represent approx. 32% of the total reserve and given the variable 
nature of the deposit it is not unreasonable to assume that the actual 
volumes could in vary places across the site.  Consequently, the volumes of 
Type 1 produced each year could vary significantly year on year and even if 
the deposit was evenly dispersed this would still only represent approx. 
65,000 tonnes of the estimated total 200,000 tonnes of mineral to be 
extracted per year.  Consequently, the overwhelming majority of the 
reserves released would still comprise of low quality aggregate for which 
there is no need or requirement and even if the figures cited are accurate 
the relatively low volume of the Type 1 limestone aggregate is not 
considered sufficient to convince your Officers that this proposal represents 
an exceptional circumstance. 

 
35. Consequently, in conclusion, there is no quantitative need to justify the 

release of new limestone reserves at this time.  Although a proportion of the 
limestone reserves identified as being present within the site may have 
special characteristics and properties and as such a higher quality not 
currently available from existing sites/sources, given the proportionally low 
quantities of such materials when compared with the higher volumes of 
lower quality aggregate for which there is already a substantial landbank of 
existing permitted reserves available, your Officers do not consider there to 
be a proven need or exceptional circumstance to support the release of 
those minerals at this time.  Therefore the proposed development has failed 
to demonstrate compliance with Policy M5 of the CSDMP. 

 
Need for landfill provision 
 
36. The application proposes to progressively restore the site through the 

importation and landfilling of a significant volume of inert wastes (approx. 
2,135,000m3 /3,202,500 to 3,416,000 tonnes).  The importation and use of 
wastes or materials not derived from the site is not permitted by the Denton 
ironstone consent and consequently consideration needs to be given in 
terms of how this aspect of the development would accord and meet the 
aims, objectives and policies of the current Development Plan. 

 
37. The National Planning Policy for Waste, the Planning Practice Guidance 

'Waste' and the recently adopted CSDMP all seek to move the management 
of waste up the waste hierarchy and therefore support proposals which 
facilitate this overall objective.  Proposals for new waste management 
facilities of all types will therefore be considered in terms of how they would 
help to meet the predicted capacity gaps for waste arisings within the 
County and thus meet the objectives of Policy W1 of the CSDMP.  Within 
this context the disposal of waste through landfill is considered to be a last 
resort and therefore proposals which seek to create new landfill void space 
capacity are generally discouraged and only supported where they 
demonstrate compliance with the criteria set out in Policy W6 of the 
CSDMP.   

 

Page 96



38. Policy W6 states that permission for new landfill will only be supported 
where they current capacity is insufficient to manage waste arising in 
Lincolnshire or its equivalent which requires disposal to landfill in the 
County; where there is a long-term improvement to the local landscape and 
character of the areas with enhanced public access (where appropriate); 
where such proposals would not cause a significant delay to the restoration 
of existing waste disposal sites and where proposals accord with other 
policies contained within the Development Plan. 

 
39. In terms of existing landfill void space capacity, the recently adopted 

CSDMP maintains the objective of not seeking to provide new inert or non-
hazardous landfill capacity above current levels.  Although the CSDMP 
(Table 9) does confirm that there is an identified capacity gap for inert only 
landfill from the year 2019, the plan does not seek to allocate additional sites 
and no sites are being promoted within the emerging Site Locations 
Document which will eventually support the CDSMP and form part of the 
Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan.  The reason no sites are being 
promoted is due to a number of reasons including the fact that there is a 
recognised surplus of non-hazardous landfill already available throughout 
the Plan period (i.e. up to 2031) and because a number of the existing 
landfill sites have end dates extending beyond the Plan period and have no 
restrictions on the rates of infilling and therefore these could be increased to 
meet demand and reduce the identified capacity gap if necessary.  The site 
itself has not been identified as potential future mineral site within the 
emerging Site Locations Document due to the existing volume of permitted 
limestone reserves and also has already been considered and discounted 
as a suitable site for the establishment of new inert landfill facility because of 
the site's failure to meet the required Level 1 assessment criteria due to its 
proximity to a SSSI and consequently was not considered a suitable site to 
take forward to stage 2 of the assessment.  The reason cited for discounting 
this site within Table 6 of this document is also cited as being due to the site 
being 'outside the spatial strategy area/no identified need for facility' and 
although it is accepted that this document is still in its early stages of 
preparation and therefore carries little weight in the determination of this 
application, nevertheless it doesn't alter the fact that there is no quantified 
need create inert landfill given the existing capacities available and therefore 
this proposal has failed to demonstrate compliance with the first criteria of 
Policy W6 of the CDSMP. 

 
40. In terms of compliance with the other criteria of Policy W6, the applicant has 

argued that it is necessary to import the volume of wastes required in order 
to restore the site to a landform that is sympathetic both with the existing 
local landscape and character and to enable the reinstatement of the 
existing best and most versatile agricultural land.  The site is also proposed 
to be progressively restored which would not only minimise the disturbance 
and area of active working at any one time but also ensure that the impacts 
upon the existing land-uses and environment are minimised.  

 
41. As discussed later in this report, if the applicant decided to reactive the 

Denton ironstone consent via an Initial Review application as an alternative 

Page 97



to the current proposals (as has consistently been stated as a 'fall back' 
position within the application should planning permission not be granted for 
this proposal) then given the limitations of that consent (i.e. it does not allow 
the use of imported wastes) then a restoration scheme would have to be 
designed which would create an acceptable landform and after-uses without 
the reliance upon the use of imported waste.  As the applicant has argued 
that the reactivation of the Denton ironstone consent is a realistic alternative 
to the current proposal, then under the EIA Regulations the MPA are able to 
consider this as a potential alternative to the current proposal and therefore 
have consequently invited the applicant, via the Regulation 22 Notice, to 
consider and demonstrate why it would not therefore be possible to restore 
the site to a suitable profile and after-uses either without the use of imported 
wastes entirely or to a lower profile using a significantly lower volume of 
wastes especially given the lack of need to create new landfill capacity at 
this time.  Minor modifications were subsequently made to the restoration 
proposals as part of the Further Information response and those changes 
have reduced the original volume of wastes proposed by 460,000m3.  These 
changes were primarily made in order to facilitate changes in the post-
restoration drainage regime for the site and have not therefore significantly 
reduced the overall volumes of imported materials proposed to be landfilled 
within the site.  Consequently, your Officers are not satisfied that the 
applicant has adequately demonstrated that the current proposals (which 
rely upon the use of a significant volume of imported wastes for which there 
is no identified need for in terms of waste management capacities) would 
secure long-term improvements to the local landscape when compared with 
a potential alternative scheme which the applicant themselves has indicated 
is a feasible alternative to this development that would have to be devised if 
the Denton ironstone consent were to reactivated.  Furthermore, as the 
restoration proposals subject of this application rely upon a steady and 
significant supply of inert wastes in order to achieve them, and takin into 
account the pressure to increase C&D recycling rates, this could potentially 
further reduce the availability of such wastes in the future and consequently 
the lack of such materials could significantly delay the restoration of the site.  
For these reasons, it is therefore considered that the proposed development 
has also failed to demonstrate compliance with the second and third criteria 
of Policy W6 of the CSDMP. 

 
Environmental and Amenity Considerations/Impacts 
 
Landscape/Visual and Heritage Asset Impacts 
 
42. As with all mineral operations, the proposed development would change the 

existing visual appearance and character of the area and therefore a 
number of measures have been proposed which, as far as possible, aim to 
minimise and reduce any impacts upon the surrounding area and nearby 
residents.  Despite the size of the development views from public vantage 
points both within the immediate surroundings as well as at distances from 
outside the site are largely limited and where views may be obtainable these 
could be further restricted and ameliorated through the implementation of 
the mitigation measures proposed within the application (e.g. direction of 

Page 98



phasing, progressive working and restoration of the site and use of 
screening bunds).  However, there is the potential for views from the 
properties situated within the Hill Top Farm complex which are at an 
elevated position and lie towards the north-west of the site.  In order to 
mitigate and restrict views from these properties it is therefore proposed to 
advance plant a substantial woodland in the land between these properties 
and the quarry so that these would have time to mature and thus provide an 
effective visual screen before operations commence within this phase of the 
site.   

 
43. Whilst the proposed planting of the woodland in front of the properties 

located within the Hill Top Farm complex would help to minimise the visual 
impact of the development on these, this would in itself alter the existing 
rural setting of these properties.  The farmhouse and its associated barns 
are Grade II Listed Buildings and the current setting of these buildings is 
agricultural land which contributes to their significance as farmhouse 
buildings.  CSDMP Policy DM4 seeks to protect heritage assets from 
harmful development and where adverse impacts are identified then the 
development should only be granted where there are exceptional overriding 
reasons which outweigh the need to safeguard the significance of the asset 
or where harmful aspects can be satisfactorily mitigated.   

 
44. In this case, from a purely visual perspective the benefits of the planting of 

this woodland are acknowledged, however, the woodland itself would have a 
harmful and adverse impact upon the setting of the Grade II Listed 
Buildings.  The proposed woodland is only required as the application is 
seeking permission to work land which lies outside the footprint of the extant 
Denton ironstone consent and as such would bring the proposed mineral 
operations in closer proximity to these assets.  If the Denton ironstone 
consent were to be reactivated (which the applicant has stated is a feasible 
'fall-back' and alternative position in the event that planning permission was 
not granted for this proposal) then the distance between the potential 
quarrying operations and these Grade II Listed Buildings would have to be 
much greater and therefore so too would the potential for harmful impacts 
upon the setting of these assets.  As there is not quantitative need to justify 
the release of new mineral reserves from this area of land, it is considered 
that there are no overriding reasons which outweigh the need to safeguard 
the significance of the Grade II Listed Buildings that would be harmed by 
this proposal and therefore, if planning permission were to be granted this 
would be contrary to the objectives of the NPPF and CSDMP Policy DM4 
and relevant criterion of SKCS Policy EN1 which seek to protect heritage 
assets from inappropriate development. 

 
Noise & Dust 
 
45. Noise, Air Quality and Dust Assessments are contained within the 

supporting ES which identify the operations or processes likely to cause 
noise and dust and makes recommendations for mitigation measures to be 
adopted to minimise and control the impacts of these upon nearby sensitive 
receptors.  

Page 99



46. In terms of dust, although a number of the representations received have 
criticised the contents of the air quality and dust assessment undertaken, 
there are relatively few dwellings in close proximity to the site with the 
closest being those located within the Hill Top Farm complex located 
towards the north-western edge of the site.  The proposed extraction 
boundary of the site would be set back some distance from these properties 
and the prevailing winds are predominately from the southwest.  The 
properties and residents most likely to be affected by the proposals lie on 
the lee side of the proposed quarrying activities.  Given the distance of the 
site from other properties and settlements it is therefore considered likely 
that should any fugitive dust emissions extend beyond the site boundaries 
then these would be likely to settle out and be deposited before they reach 
those receptors.  

 
47. In terms of noise, the assessment has demonstrated that the quarrying 

operations could be carried out without exceeding the recognised 
acceptable noise limits as set out within the NPPG and therefore would not 
have an adverse impact on noise sensitive receptors close to the site. 
Consequently, whilst the objections and criticisms raised are noted it is 
considered that the potential amenity or environmental problems that could 
occur as a result of noise and dust could be adequately controlled and 
mitigated against through the implementation of established and recognised 
on-site management practices.  

 
48. Given the above, if planning permission were to be granted then conditions 

could be imposed to deal with issues relating to dust and noise and used to 
secure the implementation of the mitigation measures/schemes/practices 
proposed within the ES.  Such conditions would ensure that proposed 
development would not have a significant adverse impact in terms of noise 
and dust and therefore accord with advice contained within the NPPG and 
CSDMP Policy DM3 and relevant criterion of SKCS Policy EN1. 

 
Highways & Traffic 
 
49. A number of objections have been received on the grounds of the increased 

traffic and several of these have commented that the road network in the 
locality is inadequate and of a poor condition and that the frequency and 
size of vehicular traffic would increase the risk of accidents to other road 
users.  The routes proposed to be used by traffic associated with this 
development fall within the administrative boundaries of both Lincolnshire 
and Leicestershire and despite the concerns raised by members of the 
public, no objections have been received from either party in their capacities 
as Local Highway Authority.  However, both have recommended that should 
planning permission be granted then planning conditions should be imposed 
and the proposed highway improvement works along Gorse Lane should be 
secured by way of a S278 Agreement.  Similarly, it is recommended that the 
routeing of vehicular traffic be secured by way of a S106 Planning Obligation 
which would ensure that the routes taken by quarry traffic are restricted 
access to and from the site via the A607 and Gorse Lane junction only.  

 

Page 100



50. Consequently, although it is accepted that a significant number of objections 
have been raised with regard to traffic and potential highway safety issues, 
given that there is no technical objection from either of the responsible 
Highway Authorities, if planning permission were to be granted, planning 
conditions/agreements could be secured which would ensure that the 
development would not have a significant adverse impact upon the highway 
network and as such would be acceptable in highways terms and in accord 
with the objectives of the NPPF, CSDMP Policy DM14 and relevant criterion 
of SKCS Policy EN1. 

 
Archaeology & Ecology 
 
51. The proposed development affects a significant area of land however the 

majority of the site comprises of intensively farmed agricultural land and 
therefore is of limited ecological value.  It is considered that sufficient 
information and details have been provided to assess the impacts of the 
proposals on flora and fauna falling within the footprint of the proposal site 
and appropriate mitigation measures would be implemented to ensure that 
the proposed development would not have an adverse impact on a range of 
species which may be present and/or which use the site as terrestrial and 
foraging habitat.  If planning permission were to be granted, planning 
conditions could therefore be imposed to secure and require the 
implementation of those measures. 

 
52. In terms of archaeology, although a series of archaeological features exist 

across the site and no objections have been raised from the Historic 
Environment Team and instead it is advised that the impact of destruction of 
any features within the site could be mitigated by recording archaeological 
remains prior to extraction works.  Consequently, should consent be granted 
then again planning conditions could be imposed which would require an 
archaeological scheme of works to be undertaken. 

 
Hydrology and Hydrogeology 
 
53. A substantial number of the objections have been received to the proposals 

on the grounds that the development could result in an adverse impact upon 
the existing surface water groundwater systems.  As well as the general 
objections and comments from members of the public, GOLAG and 
representatives on behalf of the Hungerton Estate have also commissioned 
and submitted detailed and technical reports produced by consultants that 
have criticised and challenged the findings and conclusions of the 
assessments undertaken by the applicant as part of the ES and Further 
Information.  It is argued that the assessments have failed to properly 
demonstrate the potential impacts of the development upon the flow of 
groundwater in the locality and therefore the working of limestone from the 
proposal site would adversely affect the flow of natural springs around the 
site.  Objections and concerns have also been raised by third parties, 
including the Lincolnshire Wildlife Trust, about the hydrological implications 
and potential adverse impacts that could arise as a result of the mineral 

Page 101



extraction operations upon the adjacent Willowbed Plantation Ancient 
Woodland. 

 
54. Drainage proposals have been designed as part of the development which 

include the provision of discharge points which be used to directly recharge 
watercourses and the underlying groundwater horizons and thus ensure that 
water is channelled to maintain the existing natural drainage system.  If it 
were felt necessary and planning permission were to be granted, a water 
management plan could potentially be secured by the imposition of planning 
conditions which could be used to monitor water levels within the nearby 
Hungerton Spring and Ancient Woodland and define specific trigger points 
which would require action to be taken to ensure that the development 
would not have an adverse impact upon the existing water levels present.  In 
respect of potential impacts upon the Ancient Woodland, no objections have 
been received from the Woodland Trust given the separation distance 
between the proposed development and the woodland however they have 
not commented on the potential hydrological issues and instead have 
recommended that advice on this aspect should be deferred to the 
Environment Agency. 

 
55. The Environment Agency have reviewed all the information contained within 

the original ES and Further Information and despite the issues raised by 
third parties, have maintained their view and advice that they are satisfied 
with the proposed working scheme, restoration and drainage proposals 
promoted as part of the development.  Therefore subject to the 
implementation of the mitigation and water management procedures 
proposed within the application, they have raised no objection to the 
proposals.  The Environment Agency are the statutory body responsible for 
providing advice to Mineral Planning Authorities on matters relating to 
hydrology and hydrogeology and although the objections and issues raised 
by members of the public and the third party commissioned consultant 
reports are noted, your Officers have no reason to question the observations 
from the Environment Agency. 

 
56. Given the above, on the basis of the Environment Agency's advice it is 

considered that, subject to the implementation of the mitigation measures 
proposed as part of the application, the development would not have an 
adverse impact upon the underlying groundwater or surface water regimes 
and therefore would not be contrary to the objectives of CSDMP Policies 
DM8 and DM16. 

 
Exceptional circumstances / environmental benefit 
 
57. As mentioned previously, the Denton ironstone consent is a dormant 

planning permission which does potentially allow for the extraction of 
minerals across part of the application site as well as a much larger area of 
land falling within Denton, Harlaxton, Wyville, Stroxton and Great Ponton.  
The applicants offer to give up rights to work an area extending some 708 
hectares of the extant Denton ironstone consent would therefore appear to 
offer an environmental benefit insofar as removing an extant planning 

Page 102



permission which, if reactivated, could potentially allow mineral development 
to take place over a much wider area.  However, it should be noted that 
even if this offer was taken up it would not entirely remove the potential for 
areas of the Denton ironstone consent, not within the applicant's control or 
part of the proposed S106 Planning Obligation, to potentially be reactivated 
by the other landowner.  This therefore would leave an area extending 
approx. 124 hectares in size.   

 
58. The applicant has stated that whilst there is the prospect that this remaining 

area could be reactivated, in their view this would not be a commercially 
viable option having taken into account the proximity of known Scheduled 
Ancient Monuments and existing dwellings in the locality and as parts of the 
land have already been worked out.  Whilst this view is noted, nevertheless 
the applicant is unable to offer up the entire extent of the Denton ironstone 
consent as a 'swap' for the current proposals.  Furthermore, although the 
applicant has argued that the current proposals to work a smaller and more 
focused area would be more environmentally acceptable and not have 
significant effects when compared with the alternative of reactivating the 
wider Denton ironstone consent, again it should be remembered that before 
any operations could legally commence under that consent it would have to 
undergo an Initial Review. 
 

59. An Initial Review of the Denton ironstone consent would require a full 
environmental appraisal of the main effects of the working and restoration of 
that entire consent area to be undertaken (i.e. including land not within the 
applicants control) and also require a comprehensive scheme of modern 
planning conditions to be proposed which the MPA would have to be 
satisfied ensure that any development could be carried out and/or mitigation 
measures secured to minimise, off-set or compensate for any significant 
adverse effects.  In carrying out that Initial Review areas of land within the 
wider consent area that have previously been worked and restored would 
likely have to be excluded and so too potentially would areas of land close to 
existing settlements if it could not be demonstrated that these could be 
worked to meet modern limits and standards on factors such as noise and 
dust, etc.  Given this, any potential working area/footprint of the Denton 
ironstone consent would likely have to be much smaller than that which is 
covered by the permission.   
 

60. Furthermore, as the Denton ironstone consent does not allow for the 
importation and use of inert wastes to restore the site, if that consent were to 
be reactivated then any working and restoration proposals would need to be 
able to demonstrate that the land can be worked without having a significant 
adverse impact on the environment and amenity of nearby residents and 
importantly still be restored to a landform and after-use that is acceptable 
utilising on-site materials only.  As a consequence the working and 
restoration schemes that would be required to reactivate the Denton 
ironstone consent are likely to result in a different development to that which 
is currently proposed.  If the working and restoration proposals and any 
planning conditions proposed as part of any Initial Review failed to meet the 
requirements of the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations or 

Page 103



demonstrate that the development could be undertaken without giving rise to 
significant adverse effects which could not be adequately mitigated against 
or compensated for, then the MPA would not have to accept them.  The 
applicant can appeal the imposition of conditions on a dormant site where 
these differ or substitute those proposed by the applicant in an Initial Review 
application however compensation is not payable for imposing updated 
planning conditions. 

 
61. Given the above, as the applicant is unable to give up the entire Denton 

ironstone consent as a 'swap' for planning permission for this development 
and as the Denton ironstone consent has not undergone an Initial Review 
(and therefore the extent of the actual potential working footprint as well as 
working schemes and restoration proposals for the development of that area 
have not been devised) it is not possible to conclusively conclude that the 
current proposals would be less environmentally damaging than the 
alternative and therefore offer an environmental benefit. 

 
Public opposition/objections 
 
62. Finally, a significant number of representations have been received during 

the consideration of this application and many of these have raised 
objections on the grounds of potential significant adverse environmental and 
amenity impacts arising from the development.  The level of public interest 
and number of objections received are noted, however, the planning system 
does not exist to protect the private interests of one person against the 
activities of another.  The basic question therefore is not whether the owners 
and occupiers of neighbouring properties or local residents would 
experience financial or other loss from a particular development but whether 
the proposal would unacceptably affect amenities and the existing use of 
land and buildings which ought to be protected in the public interest. 
Consequently, local opposition or support for a proposal is not in itself a 
ground for refusing or granting planning permission, unless it is founded 
upon valid planning reasons. 

 
63. In this case, although the objections and issues raised by the public and 

GOLAG are noted, having considered the proposals and taking into account 
the advice and comments received from statutory and non-statutory 
consultees, it is concluded that many of the potential impacts and issues in 
respect of matters including landscape, noise, dust, traffic, etc could have 
potentially been mitigated, minimised or reduced through the implementation 
of the mitigation measures proposed within the application and/or through 
the imposition of planning conditions.  Given this your Officers have not 
recommended that planning permission be refused on the grounds that the 
development would have, for example, a significant or unacceptable 
adverse impact in terms of landscape and visual impact, hydrology, traffic, 
noise, dust, etc.  Instead, it is considered that this proposal conflicts with the 
overall strategic objectives and identified policies of the recently adopted 
Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan which relate to supply and need 
(or lack of) for new limestone reserves and landfill as well as the adverse 

Page 104



impact that the development would have upon the setting of would be 
designated heritage assets which lie close to the site. 

 
Overall Conclusions 
 
64. Overall, whilst the principle of mineral extraction from part of the site already 

exists by virtue of the dormant Denton ironstone consent, this proposal 
seeks to release new unconsented limestone reserves and although a 
proportion of the recoverable aggregate may have special characteristics, 
the overwhelming majority of the aggregates would comprise of low quality 
aggregate for which there is no quantitative need.  The potentially higher 
grade aggregates are not currently produced by other limestone quarries 
within the County however given the variation in the Lincolnshire Limestone 
deposit such materials could potentially be produced and recycled 
aggregates can also have similar qualities.  Given the level of existing 
permitted limestone reserves there is therefore no proven or quantitative 
need to justify the release of additional reserves and so the development is 
contrary to Policy M5 of the Core Strategy & Development Management 
Policies of the Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (2016). 

 
65. Secondly, there is a recognised surplus of landfill void space capacity 

available to meet future requirements and this proposal would result in the 
creation of a new landfill site which would provide an unnecessary over-
supply of landfill capacity for which there is no identified need.  The 
proposals would therefore be contrary to the principles of the National 
Planning Policy for Waste and Policies W1 and W6 of the Core Strategy & 
Development Management Policies (2016) of the Lincolnshire Minerals and 
Waste Local Plan. 

 
66. Thirdly, the proposed development would have an adverse impact upon the 

setting of the Hill Top Farm farmhouse and its associated barns which are 
Grade II Listed Buildings.  The current setting of these buildings is 
agricultural land which contributes to their significance as farmhouse 
buildings and the proposed development would alter this setting through the 
proposed planting of substantial woodland between the development and 
these properties.  Although the planting of this woodland would minimise the 
visual impact of the development upon the residents of these properties, it 
would harm and impact the existing rural setting of these properties.  As 
there is no quantitative need to justify the release of new mineral reserves at 
this time, and considering the adverse impacts that this development would 
have upon the setting of these designated heritage assets, it is considered 
that there are no overriding reasons which outweigh the need to safeguard 
the significance of these Grade II Listed Buildings and therefore the 
development would be contrary to the objectives of National Planning Policy 
Framework along with Policy DM4 of the Core Strategy & Development 
Management Policies (2016) of the Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local 
Plan and South Kesteven Local Plan Policy EN1 which seek to protect 
heritage assets from harmful development. 

 
 

Page 105



RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
It is recommended that: 
 
A.  This report forms part of the Council's Statement pursuant to Regulation 24 

of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) 
Regulations 2011 which requires the Council to make available for public 
inspection at the District Council's Offices specified information regarding 
the decision.  Pursuant to Regulation 24(1)(c) the Council must make 
available for public inspection a statement which contains: 

 
 content of decision and any conditions attached to it; 
 main reasons and considerations on which decision is based; 
 including if relevant, information about the participation of the public; 
 a description, when necessary, of the main measures to avoid, reduce 

and if possible offset the major adverse effects of the development; 
 information recording the right to challenge the validity of the decision and 

procedure for doing so. 
 
B. Planning permission be refused for the following reasons: 
 

1. The Core Strategy & Development Management Policies of the 
Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan (2016) confirms that 
there is a substantial surplus of permitted limestone reserves 
available to meet future requirements.  This proposal seeks to 
release new unconsented limestone reserves and although a 
proportion of the recoverable aggregate may have special 
characteristics, the overwhelming majority of the aggregates would 
comprise of low quality aggregate for which there is no quantitative 
need.  The potentially higher grade aggregates are not currently 
produced by other limestone quarries within the County however 
given the variation in the Lincolnshire Limestone deposit such 
materials could potentially be produced and recycled aggregates can 
also have similar qualities.  Given the level of existing permitted 
limestone reserves there is therefore no proven or quantitative need 
to justify the release of additional reserves and so the development is 
contrary to Policy M5 of the Core Strategy & Development 
Management Policies of the Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local 
Plan (2016). 

 
2. The National Planning Policy for Waste and the Core Strategy & 

Development Management Policies of the Lincolnshire Minerals and 
Waste Local Plan (2016) seek to move waste up the waste hierarchy, 
with disposal of waste through landfill only being considered as a last 
resort.  This proposal would result in the creation of a new landfill site 
which is not considered necessary to meet predicted capacity gaps 
for waste arisings within the County.  There is a recognised surplus of 
landfill void space capacity available to meet future requirements and 
therefore this development would provide an unnecessary over-

Page 106



supply of landfill capacity which would be contrary to the principles of 
the National Planning Policy for Waste and Policies W1 and W6 of 
the Core Strategy & Development Management Policies (2016) of the 
Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan. 

 
3. The proposed development would have an adverse impact upon the 

setting of the Hill Top Farm farmhouse and its associated barns 
which are Grade II Listed Buildings.  The current setting of these 
buildings is agricultural land which contributes to their significance as 
farmhouse buildings and the proposed development would alter this 
setting through the proposed planting of substantial woodland 
between the development and these properties.  Although the 
planting of this woodland would minimise the visual impact of the 
development upon the residents of these properties, it would harm 
and impact the existing rural setting of these properties.  As there is 
no quantitative need to justify the release of new mineral reserves at 
this time, and considering the adverse impacts that this development 
would have upon the setting of these designated heritage assets, it is 
considered that there are no overriding reasons which outweigh the 
need to safeguard the significance of these Grade II Listed Buildings 
and therefore the development would be contrary to the objectives of 
National Planning Policy Framework along with Policy DM4 of the 
Core Strategy & Development Management Policies (2016) of the 
Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan and South Kesteven 
Local Plan Policy EN1 which seek to protect heritage assets from 
harmful development. 

 
 
Appendix 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Committee Plan 

 
  

Page 107



Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 
were relied upon in the writing of this report. 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Planning Application File 
S26/1611/15 

British Geological Report 
'An assessment of the 
aggregate properties of 
the Lower Lincolnshire 
Limestone in south 
Lincolnshire and 
surrounding areas' 

Lincolnshire County Council, Planning, Witham Park 
House, Waterside South, Lincoln 

 

National Planning Policy 
Framework (2012) 

Communities and Local Government website 
www.gov.uk 

National Planning Policy 
Guidance (NPPG) (2014) 

 

National Planning Policy 
for Waste (2014) 

 

Lincolnshire Minerals & 
Waste Local Plan: Core 
Strategy and 
Development 
Management Policies 
(CSDMP) (2016) 

Lincolnshire County Council website 
www.lincolnshire.gov.uk  

Draft Site Locations 
Document (Preferred Site 
and Areas) of the 
Lincolnshire Minerals & 
Waste Local Plan 
(December 2015) 

 

South Kesteven Core 
Strategy (SKCS) (2010) 

South Kesteven District Council 
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk   

 
 
This report was written by Marc Willis, who can be contacted on 01522 782070 or 
dev_pcg@lincolnshire.gov.uk 
 

Page 108



Site of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of Application

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

Gorse Lane

A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607
A607

CountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCountyCounty
BoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundaryBoundary

LeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershireLeicestershire

Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking Viking 
WayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWayWay

LINCOLNSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Reproduced from the 1996 OS Mapping with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown

Copyright.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
Copyright and may lead to civil proceedings.

OS LICENCE 1000025370



LINCOLNSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 3 OCTOBER 2016

Prevailing Wind Direction from the south-west



Location:

Land located off Gorse Lane
Denton

Application No:
Scale:  

S26/1611/15
1:15000

Description:

For the extraction of limestone and importation of 
sustainable inert fill to achieve a beneficial 
restoration of the site 

Page 109

elaine.wrath
Appendix A



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 Regulatory and Other Committee 
 

Open Report on behalf of Richard Wills  
Executive Director, Environment & Economy 

 

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee 

Date: 3 October 2016 

Subject: County Council Development - (E)S86/1655/16 
 

Summary: 
Planning permission is sought by Lincolnshire County Council to construct a dome 
shaped circular building for the storage of road salt, associated surface water 
drainage improvements and water storage at the Highways Depot, Hemingby 
Lane, Horncastle. 
 
This application has been made in a bid to reduce the negative environmental and 
economic impacts of the existing open salt store at the Hemingby Lane Highways 
Depot by providing a weatherproof, watertight building, with associated drainage 
and water storage. 
 
The key consideration when assessing this application is the possible impacts of 
the proposed building on amenity of the occupiers of the residential properties on 
the boundaries of the Highway Depot, in particular those to the south of the site. 
 
 

Recommendation: 
Following consideration of the relevant development plan policies and the 
comments received through consultation and publicity it is recommended that 
conditional planning permission be granted. 
 
 
Background 
 
1.  This site in Horncastle has been a highway depot since the 1970's.  It has 

been used since that time by the Councils DLO (Direct Labour 
Organisations) and subsequently contractors to store/maintain vehicles and 
store materials in connection with the Council provision of winter 
maintenance, highway maintenance and countryside services operations.  
Over the years there has been an increase in activity at the site, as a result 
of elements of the Councils services being contracted out.  There is also an 
office building within the depot, for a period between 1999 to 2004, the office 
was unmanned however, it is now used as a "hub" for Council/contractors 
staff.   

Page 111

Agenda Item 6.1



2. Over the past few years, several planning applications have been submitted, 
and granted, for similar salt barns throughout the County.  The primary 
purpose behind these buildings, is environmental and economic, to prevent 
the seepage of salt into the ground and watercourses and also provide a 
weather–proof environment thus reducing the moisture content of the stored 
salt. 

 
The Application 
 
3. Planning permission is sought to erect a building for the storage of road salt 

along with associated surface water drainage improvements and water 
storage at Highways Depot, Hemingby Lane, Horncastle.  The applicant has 
submitted the following information in support of this application.   

 
4. This application would enable the construction of a weatherproof, watertight 

structure on a new concrete pad close to the existing salt store.  At present 
salt is stored close to the entrance of the depot, up to a height of 6m and 
protected by tarpaulin.  The proposed building would enable the storage of 
the amount of salt required for winter road maintenance, whilst addressing 
environmental issues regarding seepage of salt into the ground and water 
courses.  The proposal would require some ground works including the 
levelling of the site and the relaying of the concrete base to the front of the 
proposed building to enable this area to drain to a below ground sediment 
filter.  The proposal would also require the stationing of an above ground 
50,000 litre capacity storage tank (3.2m high, 3m wide and 7.2m long), 
which would feed to the brine tanks already stationed within the depot.  
There would also be an overflow feed which would link to the existing 
surface water drain.  The design of the building and associated drainage 
would enable this "grey" water to be reused for the production of the brine, 
required for the winter maintenance programme.      

 
5. The proposed salt store would be 34m in diameter and 16.5m in height and 

initially it was proposed to cover the metal frame of the dome using a green, 
lightweight fabric which would be above a 3m high concrete retaining wall 
base.  The applicant has, however, also stated that as an alternative to this 
design the dome structure could be constructed using a timber frame which 
would be clad using green coloured heavy duty felt tiles.  The entrance to 
the barn would be located on the north western elevation facing towards the 
entry to the depot and highway beyond, and away from the nearest 
residential properties.  The opening would be 6m wide and 10m high.   

 

Page 112



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. The footprint and height of the barn is dictated by the need to store 6,500 

tonnes of salt in order to maintain effective winter maintenance and because  
a minimum height of 10m is required in order to allow the tipping of lorries 
during delivery.  The new building would therefore allow for deliveries and 
the movement of plant within the building and would provide a weather–
proof environment thus reducing the moisture content of the stored salt and 
preventing its potential seepage into the ground and watercourses.  The 
proposed storage barn, although larger, reflects the current buildings and 
storage facilities at the depot which consist of an existing workshop 
(approximately 9m wide x 18.5m long x 6.5m high) and a garage 
(approximately 10m wide x 49m long x 7m high).  

 
7. The storage barn would be positioned within a central location to provide 

suitable manoeuvring space for plant and vehicles.  The land where the barn 
is proposed to be erected is currently used for the storage of materials used 
in the repair and maintenance of public highways and these would be 
relocated to another position within the site.  Existing access and exit routes 
within the depot would be maintained and no additional lighting is proposed 
within the site. 

 

Storage Dome Proposed Plan and Elevations 

Page 113



 
 
Site and Surroundings 
 
8. The proposed site is located close to the southern boundary of the highway 

depot with a substantial office building located in the south west corner of 
the Depot, close to the western and southern boundaries, marked by a 2m 
high chain link fence.  Within the depot there are several large buildings, on 
the northern and southern boundaries, used for the storage/maintenance of 
highways vehicles.  The depot is also used for the storage of a substantial 
amount of salt. 

 
 
 

Proposed Site Layout 

Depot Surroundings 

Page 114



9. The Depot itself is located to the north east of the centre of Horncastle in an 
area of mixed uses, the area is primarily residential but there are several 
industrial uses to the west of Hemingby Lane (including scrap yard and 
waste transfer/recycling facilities).  The land immediately adjoining the depot 
on the northern boundary of the site has, since 2004, been incrementally 
granted planning permission for housing with much of the development 
along the northern boundary being granted permission and being built since 
2013, with some development to the immediate east still on going.  

 

 
 
10. It is proposed to construct the dome on the base of the depot (30.6m AOD) 

the boundaries of the nearest properties are located on the adjoining 
embankment, to the south of the site.  These are on average 3.4m (34m 
AOD) higher than the base of the depot.  As noted the first 3m of the base of 
the building would be constructed in concrete walling upon which a fixed 
steel frame (or wooden frame) would be covered in green fabric (or fabric 
tile) tapering to the top of the dome, 16.5m high. The building would be 
some 12.8m (42ft) above the level of the neighbouring gardens.  The 
boundary of the nearest residential property is 14.5m from the base of the 
dome, the garden is 10.8m long, given a distance from base of dome to the 
property of 25.3m(83 feet).  To the north the boundary of the nearest 
residential properties is located 43m from proposed dome.    

 
 
 

Site Location Within Depot 

Looking toward Southern Boundary 

Page 115



11. There is a tree belt along the southern boundary of the depot, which varies 
in depth from 4.7m to 12.4m.  The density of the trees and shrubs as well as 
the heights also varies, resulting in differing levels of screening along this 
boundary of the depot to the gardens and houses to the south.       

       
Main Planning Considerations 
 
National Guidance 
 
12. National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (March 2012) sets out the 

Government’s planning policies for England and is a material planning 
consideration in the determination of planning applications.  In assessing 
and determining development proposals, Local Planning Authorities should 
apply the presumption in favour of sustainable development.  The main 
policies/statements set out in the NPPF which are relevant to this proposal 
are as follows (summarised): 

 
Paragraph 14 – Sustainable development 
Paragraph 17 – Core planning principles 
Paragraph 59 – LPA should provide guidance on, amongst other things - 
scale, massing, height, landscape, layout, materials and access of new 
development in relation to neighbouring buildings and the local area more 
generally   
Paragraph 120 – Protection of the natural environment and general amenity 
Paragraph 123 – Quality of life and noise 
Paragraphs 186 & 187 – Proactive, positive decision making 
Paragraph 206 – Use of planning conditions 
Paragraphs 215 & 216 – Status of Local Plans, policies and their 
consistency with the national policy. 

 
Local Plan Context 
 
13. East Lindsey Local Plan Alteration 1999 (Saved Policies September 2007) – 

the following policies are of relevance: 
 

Policy A4 (Protection of General Amenities) states that development which 
unacceptably harms the general amenities of people living or working 
nearby will not be permitted. 

 
Policy A5 (Quality and Design of Development) states that development 
which, by its design, improves the quality of the environment will be 
permitted provided it does not conflict with other policies of the plan. 
Otherwise, development will be permitted only where:- 
 
a)  Its design - including its layout, density, scale, appearance or choice of 

materials - does not detract from the distinctive character of the locality; 
 
b)  It retains or incorporates features or characteristics which are important 

to the quality of the local environment including important medium and 
long distance views; 

Page 116



c)  It is integrated within a landscaping scheme appropriate to its setting. 
 

East Lindsey Core Strategy (ELCS) (February 2016) – this document forms 
part of the emerging East Lindsey Local Plan which has been out to public 
consultation and this consultation period has only recently ended.  In line 
with paragraph 216 of the NPPF, given its stage of preparation, only limited 
weight may be given to this document in the determination of this 
application, however the following policies are of relevance: 

 
Strategic Policy 1A (SP1A) (Sustainable Development) states that the 
Council will support sustainable development in accordance with the NPPF, 
it will work proactively with applicants to find solutions to enable the approval 
of development which improves the economic, social and environmental 
conditions in the area.  Planning applications that accord with Local Policies 
will be approved without delay, where there are no relevant or current 
policies permission will be granted unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise – where any adverse impacts of granting permission would 
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed against 
the policies in the NPPF, which indicate that development should be 
restricted.           

 
Strategic Policy 6 (SP6) (Design) states that the Council will support well 
designed sustainable development which maintains and enhances the 
character of the town by: supporting the use of brownfield land; the use of 
quality materials; ensuring layout scale, massing, height and density of 
development reflects the character of the surrounding area; providing 
appropriate on site landscaping to integrate the development into its wider 
surroundings; ensuring designs minimise glare and light spillage to prevent 
harm to the rural or dark sky character of a settlement or landscape, 
respecting local historic environment and does not harm nearby residential 
amenity or unacceptably reduce highway safety; supporting development 
that includes measures to reduce, reuse, recycle finite resources; and 
ensure development around water sources would contain measures to 
prevent pollution from entering the water source. 

 
Results of Consultation and Publicity 
 
14. (a) Local County Council Member, Councillor W Aron – consulted but had 

not responded by the time this report was prepared. 
 
 (b) Horncastle Town Council – support the application.  
 
 (c) Environment Agency (EA) – no comments. 
 
 (d) Highway & Lead Local Flood Authority (Lincolnshire County Council) – 

no objections.  
 
 
 
 

Page 117



15. The application has been publicised by three site notices posted at/near the 
site and 24 letters of notification were sent to the nearest neighbouring 
residents living along the boundary of the depot.  Three letters have been 
received in response to this consultation with two objecting on the following 
grounds (comments summarised): 
 
The building would: 

 
• be an eyesore;  
• reduce light into the adjacent bungalows;  
• reduce the value and inhibit re-sale of the properties;  
• be 16.5 m (55 feet) high and built a short distance from the end of our 

garden, extending 31 feet above our garden;    
• be better located where the salt is already stored, to the front of the 

depot, and should be reduced in height.  
 
16. The third letter does not object to the proposal on planning grounds but 

states that the construction of the salt barn is not essential and money 
should instead be spent to control the trees that are running along the 
southern boundary of the depot and which are stated as causing damage to 
the nearby properties.  The money should therefore be spent on the needs 
of council tax payers. 

 
District Council’s Recommendations 
 
17. East Lindsey District Council raised no objections to the proposal.  
 
Conclusion 
 
18. Policy A4 of the East Lindsey Local Plan states that development will not be 

permitted where it results in unacceptable harm to the general amenity of 
people living or working nearby.  Similarly Policy A5 supports development 
which does not detract from the distinctive character of the locality by reason 
of its design - including its layout, density, scale, appearance or choice of 
materials. 
 

19. Objections have been received which raise concerns about the impact of the 
barn in terms of potential overshadowing/loss of light and the more general 
negative impact the building would have visually.  These objections are 
noted however, the applicant has undertaken and submitted an assessment 
of the possible impacts of the barn in terms of loss of daylight to the 
habitable rooms of the properties along the southern boundary of the depot.  
This assessment demonstrates that the barn would not have an 
unacceptable impact on these properties and therefore the loss of light and 
overshadowing is not likely and therefore would not justify the refusal of this 
application. 
 

20. Notwithstanding the above, it is accepted that the construction of a building 
16.5m high and 34m in diameter would have an impact on views from 
properties which immediately abut the depot, however, there are several 

Page 118



mitigating factors which would help to reduce these impacts to an 
acceptable level.  For example, views from the properties to the north of the 
depot would be reduced as the salt barn would be set against a background 
of mature trees along the southern boundary and be located some 43m from 
the boundary of the nearest property along this side of the site.  For the 
properties to the south, the impacts would be reduced as there is a tree belt 
along the southern boundary of the depot and the distance between the 
proposed dome and the gardens/properties ranges between 14.5m from the 
boundary of the nearest property to 25.3m from the property itself.  
Additionally, in all cases the tapering effect of the design of the dome and 
the proposed colour would also reduce its visual prominence and when 
considered in the context of the existing depot, overall it is considered to be 
of an appropriate scale and location.   
 

21. With regard the third letter received, it is noted that this does not raise 
concerns/objections about the possible impacts of the barn itself but rather 
complains that money should be spent on maintenance of the trees along 
the southern boundary of the site.  The trees along this boundary are 
maintained in accordance with guidance provided by the County Council's 
Natural Environment Team who has advised that other than ongoing 
maintenance no further works are required.  Therefore the 
concerns/objections raised are not considered material to the acceptability 
of this development. 

 
22.  Finally, it is noted that no objections have been received from any of the 

statutory consultees and whilst the objections from some local residents are 
noted the proposed barn offers several benefits to the existing storage 
arrangements which are considered to outweigh the objections received.   

 
These benefits include: 
 
• reducing pollution caused by salt leaking into ground/water courses;  
• reducing the moisture content of the stored salt; 
• reducing the negative visual impact of the open storage;  
• concentrating the salt in a covered space with a dedicated entrance/exit 

which would reduce vehicle movements within the depot that would 
otherwise take place around an open salt store. 

 
23. On balance, it is therefore considered that the overall impact of the proposal 

on the amenity of the surrounding residential properties and on the 
appearance and character of the wider area is not so significant or adverse 
that planning permission should be refused.  Therefore it is concluded that 
the development would not conflict with objectives or relevant cited policies 
contained within the NPPF or Policies A4 and A5 of the East Lindsey Local 
Plan Alteration 1999. 

 
 
 
 

Page 119



RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions: 
 
1.  The development must be begun no later than the expiration of three years 

beginning with the date of this permission.  Written notification of the date of 
commencement of development shall be sent to the County Planning 
Authority within seven days of commencement. 

 
2.  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 

the following approved documents and drawings (all date stamped received 
23 May 2016) except where modified by the conditions attached to this 
planning permission or details subsequently approved pursuant to those 
conditions.  The approved documents and drawings are as follows: 

 
• Planning Application Form, Supporting Design Statement, (all date 

stamped received 13 July 2016) 
• Drawing No. LT1092-MOU-XX-XX-DR-001 - Proposed Site Layout 
• Drawing No. LT1092-MOU-XX-XX-DR-002 - Proposed Salt Storage 

Building Plan and Elevations 
• Drawing No. LT1092-MOU-XX-XX-DR-003 – Daylight and Sunlight 

Assessment. 
 
3.  No development shall take place until details relating to the colour and 

specification of the roof covering for the salt storage building hereby 
permitted have been submitted to and approved in writing by the County 
Planning Authority.  The development shall thereafter be carried out and 
implemented in accordance with the approved details. 

 
 
Reasons 
 
1.  To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 (as amended). 
 
2.  To define the permission and to ensure the development is implemented in 

all respects in accordance with the approved details. 
 
3.  In the interests of protecting the visual amenity of the area.  
 
 
Appendix 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Committee Plan 

 
 

Page 120



Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 
were relied upon in the writing of this report. 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Planning Application File 
(E)S86/1655/16 

Lincolnshire County Council, Planning, Witham Park 
House, Waterside South, Lincoln 

National Planning Policy 
Framework (2012) 

The Government's website 
www.gov.uk 

East Lindsey Local Plan 
Alteration 1999 (Saved 
Policies 2007) 

East Lindsey District Council website  
www.e-lindsey.gov.uk  

East Lindsey Core 
Strategy (ELCS) (2016) 

 

 
 
This report was written by Anne Cant, who can be contacted on 01522 782070 or 
dev_pcg@lincolnshire.gov.uk 
 

Page 121

http://www.gov.uk/
http://www.e-lindsey.gov.uk/
mailto:dev_pcg@lincolnshire.gov.uk


Site of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of Application

Current Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt StorageCurrent Salt Storage

WasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWasteWaste
TransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransferTransfer
StationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStationStation

ScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyardScrapyard

LINCOLNSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
Reproduced from the 1996 OS Mapping with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown

Copyright.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
Copyright and may lead to civil proceedings.

OS LICENCE 1000025370



LINCOLNSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 3 OCTOBER 2016

Prevailing Wind Direction from the south-west



Location:

Highways Depot
Hemingby Lane
Horncastle

Application No:
Scale:  

(E)S86/1655/16
1:2500

Description:

To construct a dome shaped circular building for 
the storage of road salt, associated surface water 
drainage improvements and water storage

Page 122

corey.sonnenberg
Appendix A



   

 
 
 

 Regulatory and Other Committee 
 

Open Report on behalf of Richard Wills  
Executive Director for Environment and Economy 

 

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee 

Date: 3 October 2016 

Subject: County Matter – Prosecution for non-compliance with a 
planning contravention notice (PCN) 

 

Summary:  

This report gives details of a prosecution taken out by the County Council in 
respect of non-compliance with a statutory planning notice issued under the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 in respect of a waste transfer station at 
Summergangs Lane, Gainsborough.  The PCN required the submission of 
information relating to a breach of a planning condition restricting the height of 
storage of waste materials to 3m.  In his absence the operator was convicted at 
Lincoln Magistrates Court on 8 August 2016 and was fined £770 and full costs of 
£550 plus a victim surcharge of £77 making a total of £1397. 
 

Recommendation: 

That the report be noted 

 
Background 
 
1. This report informs the Committee of a recent Planning prosecution and 

details of fines and costs awarded by the Court. 
 
2. On 30 March 2015 Lincolnshire County Council served a Planning 

Contravention Notice (PCN) for information relating to a breach of a 
condition of planning permission for a waste transfer station at 
Summergangs Lane, Gainsborough.  The site owner is Kevin Thompson 
who formerly operated the site as Thompson Skip Hire.  The site is no 
longer in use but wastes are still stored at the site. 

 
3. At a site inspection on 7 October 2014 it was noted that wastes at the site 

were being stored at a height of around 6m.  The permitted height is 3m.  
The operator was requested to reduce the heights to the permitted level.  
However on 9 February 2015 it was noted that waste materials were still 
being stored to a height of 6m.  A Planning Contravention Notice was served 
on the owner requiring him to provide information relating to the land and its 
use.  It is a criminal offence to fail to comply with a planning contravention 

Page 123

Agenda Item 7.1



   

notice.  The maximum penalty for non-compliance is £1000.  Whilst the 
maximum fine level may appear low, the information received following 
service of a PCN is valuable as it is normally used for the subsequent issue 
of a Planning Enforcement Notice which would require steps to be taken by 
persons identified in the PCN to remedy the breach i.e. in this case to 
reduce the heights to at or below the permitted level of 3m.  Non-compliance 
with a Planning Enforcement Notice carries an unlimited fine.  A PCN is 
therefore a valuable tool for providing the foundation for the issue of a 
subsequent planning Enforcement Notice.  Failure to provide the information 
can delay the issue of an Enforcement Notice as very often the recipient of 
the notice is the only person who possesses the required information. 

 
4. The deadline for return of the information required by the PCN was 19 April 

2015, however, the information was not returned.  Kevin Thompson was 
invited to attend an interview under caution, but he did not attend and a 
prosecution file was prepared.  A summons was issued for Kevin Thompson 
to appear at Lincoln Magistrates Court on 2 March 2016 at which charges 
were also brought against Kevin Thompson by the Environment Agency in 
respect of his failure to comply with a Court Order to fully clear the site.  
However the case was adjourned a number of times following Kevin 
Thompson's failure to appear, until on 11 May 2016 when a warrant with bail 
was issued by the Court requiring Thompson to appear in Court on 8 August 
2016 or submit a medical report stating the reasons why he was unable to 
appear. 

 
5. However on 8 August 2016 Thompson did not appear at Lincoln Magistrates 

Court and a medical report was not submitted.  Thompson was found guilty 
in his absence of a failing to comply with the Planning Contravention Notice 
issued by Lincolnshire County Council. 

 
6. The Court imposed a fine of £770, costs of £550 and a victim surcharge of 

£77.  The EA case was not concluded and was transferred to the 
Scunthorpe Magistrate's Court at which time the Environment Agency had 
brought additional charges in respect of another waste transfer station 
operated there by Thompson.  Lincolnshire County Council's prosecution 
was therefore concluded on 8 August 2016.  

 
7. Whilst the prosecution has been concluded, Lincolnshire County Council will 

now consider issuing a Planning Enforcement Notice, notwithstanding the 
absence of information required by the Planning Contravention Notice.  
However, whilst there is an existing Court Order brought by the Environment 
Agency for Thompson to completely clear the site, it may not be expedient 
or necessary to take any further action which may just be duplicating 
existing action taken by the Environment Agency. 

 
8.  Members are invited to contact the Enforcement Team Leader if further 

information is required. 
 
 

Page 124



   

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
That the report is noted. 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 
were relied upon in the writing of this report. 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Planning Enforcement 
and Prosecution File 
INV/083/2014 

Lincolnshire County Council, Planning Enforcement, 
Unit 4, Witham Park House, Waterside South, Lincoln 
LN5 7JN 

 
 
This report was written by Tim Collis, Enforcement Team Leader, who can be 
contacted on 01522 554847 or dev_planningenforcement@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3. Minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning and Regulation Committee held on 25 July 2016
	4.1 Traffic Regulation Orders - Progress Review
	PROct16 Appends

	5. County Matter Applications
	Presentation
	5.1 Denton
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17

	map of location of planning applications

	5.1 For the extraction of limestone and importation of sustainable inert fill to achieve a beneficial restoration of the site on land located off Gorse Lane, Denton - Mick George Limited - S26/1611/15
	6.1 To construct a dome shaped circular building for the storage of road salt, associated surface water drainage improvements and water storage at the Highways Depot, Hemingby Lane, Horncastle  - (E)S86/1655/16
	7.1 In respect of non-compliance with a statutory planning notice issued under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 in respect of a waste transfer station at Summergangs Lane, Gainsborough



